Leabharlann Náisiúnta na hÉireann National Library of Ireland

Collection List A 17

Ormond Family Papers

(MSS 2301-2562 and 11,044-11,073)

A collection of estate and family papers concerning the Ormond family. Collection list includes a key to the lists and calendars of Ormond family manuscripts documented by the Historical Manuscripts Commission.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I KEY TO THE LISTS AND CALENDARS OF ORMOND PAPERS PUBLISHED BY HISTORICAL MANUSCRIPTS COMMISSION	
II ORMOND PAPERS RELATING TO LANDS IN TIPPERARY	
III ORMOND PAPERS – PRISAGE OF WINES	
IV ORMOND PAPERS – DINGWALL CASE	
V ORMOND PAPERS – EARL OF OSSORY	
VI ORMOND PAPERS - CORPORATION OF KILKENNY	
VII ORMOND PAPERS RELATING TO LANDS IN KERRY	
VIII ORMOND PAPERS RELATING TO LANDS IN CO CARLOW	83
IX ORMOND PAPERS RELATING TO LANDS IN TIPPERARY	
X ORMOND PAPERS RELATING TO LANDS IN CO MAYO	
XI ORMOND PAPERS – KILKENNY LANDS	
XII CORRESPONDENCE	
XII. I GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE XII. II CORRESPONDENCE ABOUT ESTATE MANAGEMENT OF LANDS IN KILKENNY AND TIPPERA XII. III CORRESPONDENCE TO ORMOND FAMILY FROM MEMBERS OF THE ROYAL FAMILY XII. IV CORRESPONDENCE TO ORMOND FAMILY CONCERNING CORPORATION OF KILKENNY	90 3RY91 94
XIII ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 1796-1829	96
XIV PAPERS RELATING TO THE ARMY IN IRELAND 1635-1681	96
XV MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS CONCERNING LANDS IN KILKENNY	
XVI VARIOUS PETITIONS FROM THE ORMOND FAMILY	100
XVII ORMOND PAPERS CONCERNING LANDS IN KILKENNY	102
XVIII PAPERS CONCERNING ECCLESIASTICAL TITHES	
XIX MISCELLANEOUS PAPERS	105

I Key to the lists and calendars of Ormond Papers published by the Historical Manuscripts Commission.

	DESCRIPTION	HISTORICAL MANUSCRIPTS COMMISSION		
	BESCHII IIOI	Lists Calendars		
Ms. 2301-24	Letters and papers re Butler family, Earls of Ormond, public affairs in Ireland. 36 vol. 1570- 1665	H.M.C. 4 th Rept. 1873 App. p. 539	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. 1, 1902	
Ms. 2324-35		H.M.C. 4 th Rept. 1873 App. p. 539	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. III, 1904	
Ms. 2335-62	Letters and papers re James Butler, 1 st Duke of Ormond, public affairs in Ireland etc. 62 vol. 1665-80	H.M.C. 6 th Rept. 1877 App. p.719	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. III, 1904	
Ms. 2363-84		H.M.C. 6 th Rept. 1877 App. p.719	H.M.C. Cal Ormond N.S. Vol. IV, 1904	
Ms. 2384-97		H.M.C. 6 th Rept. 1877 App. p.719	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. V, 1908	
Ms. 2367-97- 441	Letters of Sir Robert Southwell to Duke of Ormond	H.M.C. 6 th Rept. 1877 App. p.719	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. IV, 1906	
In Ms. 2385	Narrative of the proceedings of the Lord Lieutenant and Council in Ireland since the intimationof the discovery of the plot in England, 1679		H.M.C. Rept. Ormond Vol. 15, 1899	
Ms. 2397- 409	Letters and papers re James Butler, 1 st Duke, James Butler 2 nd Duke, and Charles Butler, 3 rd Duke of Ormond, and public affairs in Ireland, etc., 83 vols. 1680-1826	H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. p. 783	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. V, 1908	

		H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. p. 783	H.M.C. Cal, Ormond N.S. Vol VI, 1911
Ms. 2429-53		H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. p. 783	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. V II, 1912
Ms. 2453-73		H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. p. 783	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. VIII, 1920
Ms. 2573-80		H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879	
Ms. 2397- 441 Passim	Letters of Sir Robert Southwell to Duke of Ormond	(1895) App. p. 783 H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. p. 783	H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. IV 1906
Ms. 2481-86	Undated letters addressed mainly to James Butler, 1 st Duke and James Butler, 2 nd Duke of Ormondarranged alphabetically c. 1630-17	H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. P.824	
Ms. 2487-93	Undated papers re James Butler, 1 st Duke and James Butler 2 nd Duke of Ormond, and public affairs in Ireland etc. c.1630-17	H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App. P.819	
IN Ms. 2487	Philip Alden, secret agent	H.M.C. Rept. Ormond	
Ms. 2494-98	Petitions presented to James Butler 1 st Duke and James Butler 2 nd Duke of Ormond arranged alphabetically1630-77	H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879 (1895) App.p.827	

Ms. 2499- 501	Letters and papers re claim of Elizabeth, Countess of Ormondto restitution of lands confiscated by the Commonwealth1640-60		
Ms. 2502	Letters mainly to James Butler, 2 nd Duke of Ormond, re personal and public affairs, 1701-10	H.M.C. 7 th Rept. 1879	
Ms. 2503	Letters from Elizabeth Duchess of Ormond, to Capt. George Matthews on personal and public affairs. 1668-73		H.M.C. Cal. Ormond N.S. Vol. III, 1904
Ms. 2504	Copy letters of James Butler, 1 st Duke of Ormond to Sir Robert Southwell on public and personal affairs. 1672-87		H.M.C. Rept. Ormond Vol. II, 1899
Ms. 2505	Lettersmainly to James Butler, 1 st Duke of Ormond, with someto James Butler, 2 nd Duke and Charles Butler 3 rd Duke, re personal and financial affairs. 1631-1754	H.M.C. 14 th Rept. App. 7, 1895 (Partial)	H.M.C. 14 th Rept. App 7. 1895 (Partial)
Ms. 2506-10	Rentals of Ormond properties in Co's Kilkenny, Carlow, Tipperary, Waterford, Wexford, Kildare, Dublin. 1526-1658		
Ms. 2511-13	Transcripts of petitionsto James Butler, 1 st Duke of Ormond, with the answersand indexes, 1663-66		H.M.C. 8 th Rept. App. I, 18

H.M.C. 9th Rept. App. II. 1 (1895)

H.M.C. 10th Rept. App. V.I (1895)

H.M.C. Cal. Ormond. N.S. Vol. II, 1903

Documents re early life of James Butler, 1st
Duke of Ormond, his marriage ..., her loyalty ...1641...her estates 1621-53 ...2 elegies ...Duchess of Ormond ...Duke of Ormond.

lists by Thomas H.M.C. Rept. Ormond Vol.
Deputy Surveyor- II, 1899

Ms. 2515 Two lists by Thomas
Eliot, Deputy SurveyorGeneral, of Irish
families and individuals
transplanted to
Connaught in 1655-57,
and a statement of the
total acreage involved
c. 1660

Ms. 2516 Ormond Papers:

Ms. 2514

Abstracts from various Irish chronicles (mainly concerning the Butler family) from the Norman invasion to the seventeenth century. Title reads "Liber Gulielmi Laud, Archiepiscopi Cantuar. Et Cancellar Universitat. Oxon.,1636." Also, (in a different hand) a common-place book of miscellaneous historical and devotional matter

Ms. 2517 Ormond Papers:
Genealogical papers
and pedigrees of the
Butler family, mainly
17th-18th C.

Ms. 2518

Ormond Papers: Report of Alexander Clayton on the state of the Earl of Arran's affairs in Ireland, Nov. 30, 1721, and Mr. Hutcheson's memoranda on same, Jan.8, 1721

Ms. 2519

Ormond Papers: 'Booke of entry of pattents of the ould estate etc., done by Val. Smyth,' 1680. Indexed collection of patents concerning FitzWalters and Butlers, 12th to 17th C. Copy made for Henry Lloyd of Kilkenny, land agent, 1839

Ms. 2520

Ormond Papers: Fourteen itemised bills of work done for the Earl of Ossory (aft. 2nd Duke of Ormond) by Thomas Brigham, coachmaker, 1683-87

Ms. 2521-2525, 2527-2529 Ormond Papers: Eight volumes of inventories of furnishings and household effects of Ormond establishments at London, Dublin, Kilkenny, Clonmel and Dunmore. Various dates, 1667 to 1713

Ms. 2526

Ormond Papers: Abstracts of deeds and other documents concerning accounts outstanding and other matters in difference between the Duke of Ormond and Sir Stephen Fox, 1700-1712

Ms. 2530

Ormond Papers: "The Red Book of the Earls of Ormond," containing copies of charters, surveys, rentals and other documents concerning the Butler family from the 12th c. apparently transcribed towards 1350 with some entries of a later date.

Ms. 2531

Ormond Papers: Material for a history of Kilkenny with lists of mayors and other officers from 1282 to 1712. 18th c.

Ms. 2532-2533

Ormond Papers: Two volumes containing lists of deeds, papers, evidences and other documents in the Ormond archives, describing their arrangement and location. 17th C.

Ms. 2534

Ormond Papers:
Accounts of Charles,
Earl of Arran, with
Richard and William
McGuire and with
Edward Cooke from 19
May 1721 to 1 Jan.
1723

Ms. 2535 Ormond Papers:

Account of receipts and payments on behalf of James, Earl of Ossory by Phinees Pett, (Phineas Pitt), 21 Jul. 1685 – 9 Feb. 1688

Ms. 2536 Ormond Papers:

Volume containing copies of various bonds, bills of exchange and receipts pertaining to James, Duke of Ormond and Charles, Earl of Arran, with some documents concerning the lands of Clonmore and Rathvilly, 1708-9.

Ms. 2537

Ormond Papers: Patents and grants to and by Thomas, Earl of Ormond to 1607. Copies certified by John Denham and Francis Aungier, 17th C.

Ms. 2538

Ormond Papers: Another copy of the "Booke of entry of pattents of the ould estate etc., done by Val. Smyth," (see Ms. 2519). 1839

Ms. 2539

Account of ordnance arms ...remaining in Ireland on 25 Mar 1684 in the charge of William, Viscount Mountjoy, 17C.

1895

H.M.C. 14th Rept. App. 1

Ms. 2540 Commissions, warrants and orders concerning the army in Ireland 1661-66. With index of names, 17th C.

H.M.C. 14th Rept. App. 7, 1895 Ms. 2541 Letters and papers
1640-49 connected with
Capt. William Cadogan,
Deputy Governor of
Trim, Co. Meath.
Including printed
proclamations of James,
Duke of Ormond and
others.

H.M.C. Ormond Papers V. II. 1899

Ms. 2542 Copies of letters of the Lords Justices and Privy Council of Ireland to the King ...re the progress of the rebellion in Ireland, 1641-44.

H.M.C. Cal. Ormond, Vol. II, 1903

Ms. 2543 Ormond Papers: Survey of the Ormond estates in Counties Tipperary, Waterford, Carlow, Kilkenny, Dublin and Meath, 1640.

Ms. 2544 Ormond Papers:
Rentals of the Ormond estate in counties
Tipperary, Kilkenny,
Waterford, Carlow,
Dublin and Wexford, temp. James I.

Ms. 2545 Ormond Papers: A volume containing copies of accounts, bills of exchange, receipts, deeds and other papers relating to the affairs of the first and second Dukes of Ormond, 1710-1711.

Ms. 2546 Ormond Papers:
Account of table
expenses of the Duke of
Ormond at London and
at Windsor, 10 May
1682 – 30 Mar 1683.

Ms. 2547 Ormond Papers:
Accounts of James,
Duke of Ormond, Sept.
1694 – Dec. 1707, and
of Mary, Duchess of
Ormond, Mar. 1695 –
May 1697.

Ms. 2548 Ormond Papers: House book containing accounts of stores and provisions from 16 Jun., 1701 to 12 Jul., 1703.

Ms. 2549 Ormond Papers: Household accounts, 1629–32.

Ms. 2550 Ormond Papers:
Genealogy of the
Ormond family
deduced to the year
1713. With index of
names, 18th C.

Ms. 2551 **Ormond Papers:** Rentals and court rolls of several manors of the Butler family, including those of Rathvilly, Co. Carlow, Balscadden, Rush and Portrane, Co. Dublin, Callan, Dunmore and Knocktopher, Co. Kilkenny, Blackcastle, Co. Meath and Clonmel, Co. Tipperary. Temp. Hen. VIII. To Chas. I. (c. 1531-1632).

Ms. 2552- Four volumes of household inventories of the various Ormond establishments from 1628 to 1745.

Ms. 2556 (1) Ormond Papers: A contemporary roll of the proceedings of the Irish Privy Council, 16 Ric. II. (1392-93) held under James, Earl of Ormond, Lord Justice of Ireland.

Ms. 2556 (2) Ormond Papers: A
return by the Irish Court
of Exchequer to an
English writ of
"certiorari" dated 14
Aug. 38 Ed. III, (1364)
of the debts due to the
Crown by James, Earl
of Ormond and his
predecessors, including
accounts of the King's
prise of wines in
Ireland, 14th C.

Ms. 2556 (3) Ormond Papers:
Account of James le
Botiller for the King's
prise of wines in Ireland
from 5 April 1348, to
the feast of St. Peter ad
Vincula, 1 Aug. 1366,
14th C.

Ms. 2556 (4) Ormond Papers: Extract from the Pleas of the Crown held at Kilkenny before Nicholas Walshe, of Clonmore, and Roger Wilbrahan, justices, certified by Patrick Saintleger, clerk of the Crown for County Kilkenny, 25 July 1596.

- Ms. 2556 (5) Ormond Papers: Extent of Leix taken before Walter Cowley, general supervisor of the King' possessions in Ireland. 10 Dec. 1550.
- Ms. 2556 (6) Ormond Papers: Copies of fines, etc., made before Robert de Fladdisbury the seneschal, and other officers of Agnes de Vesci, Lady of the Liberty of Kildare, 2 Nov. 1340.
- Ms. 2556 (7) Ormond Papers. Record of an appeal to the King's Court from the Court of the Liberty of Meath concerning the manors of Dunboyne and Moyemet (Maynooth?). Disputants were William son of Peter le Botiller and Roger de Mortimer, John Loterell and Thomas Comdyn. Dated at Dublin, 10 June 1395. Also record of a plea before William de Wyndsore at Kilkenny, in Chancery, 31 Ed. III. (1357-8).
- Ms. 2556 (8) Ormond Papers. Copy (damaged) of ancient grants of lands of Kilsyllon (or Kylsallon) apparently forming part of a roll 18 and 19 Ed. III. (1344-45).

Ms. 2556 (9) Ormond Papers:

Ancient paper copy of royal letters of privy seal to the Earl of Ormond, and copies of inspeximuses of letters patent of a Great Council and the King's Council held at Drogheda. Apparently a record kept by James, Earl of Ormond, then Lieutenant for his own use. The letters patent are dated 22 Henry VI. (1444).

Ms. 2556

(10)

Ormond Papers: Part of an Act of Parliament repealing an Act of Edward IV. (1468) enabling Edmund and Theobald Butler to inherit lands, possessions, etc., c.1534-36.

Ms. 2556

(11)

Ormond Papers: An extent of the

possessions of the Earl of Ormond, apparently incomplete. Based on letters patent and other documents of various dates from 1315 to 1412. Mainly 14thC.

Ms. 2557

Rules, orders and directions for regulating the Office of the Ordnance in Ireland ...By Thomas Phillips, 1685. (Copy of Ms. 3137).

Ms. 2558

Army accounts, Ireland 5 Jan. 1690 – 20 Apr. 1700.

H.M.C. Ormond Vol. II, 1899

Ms. 2559 Large collection of army lists for Ireland from 1598 to 1714.

H.M.C. 14th Rept. App. 7, 1895

Part of H.M.C. Ormond, Vol. II, 1899

Ms. 2560 Ormond Papers:

Extracts from the Civil Survey of Ireland of lands claimed by the Dukes of Ormond in counties Tipperary, Kilkenny, Carlow, Dublin, Kerry and Waterford. With a survey of the city of Kilkenny, c. 1667.

Ms. 2561 Ormond Papers:

Detailed accounts of the various collectors of arrears of rents in the Irish estates of James, Duke of Ormond, 1690-1691. With indexes of names of collectors, of tenants, and of places, 17th C.

Ms. 2562 Ormond Papers: Rental of the Ormond estates in Ireland, 1689-1704.

II Ormond papers relating to lands in Tipperary

	Ms. 11,044
Tipperary. With a few items re Co. Kilkenny and Wexford 1530-1713	(1-280)
List of lands, houses etc. in Ross passed by Bennett to Piers, Earl of Ossory.	1
[c.1530	
By the Lord Deputy and Council. Order confirming the rights of the Earl of Ormond to the liberties and regalities of Tipperary. 20 May 1555	2
List of 'concealed lands', 'the undertaking lands' [Co. Tipperary etc.] [1592	3
Thomas, Earl of Ormond to Walter Butler, Seneschal of the Liberty of Tipperary. Teige O Meagher, Chief of his name to receive the Castle of Clonekean upon sureties etc.	4
Nov. 160	
Thomas, Earl of Ormond, Warrant, Nicholas Haly of Cashel to be Chancellor of the Liberty of Tipperary.	5
16 Jan 1604[05	
Thomas, Earl of Ormond to Patrick Archer, Attorney. Warrant for a general pardon for Teigue O[Conyer] and others	6
1608	
Copy patent of the office of Attorney in the Liberty of Tipperary [for Patrick Archer]	7
11 Dec. 1608	
Order laid down by consent and special conference of the lords, gentlemen and freeholders of the County of Tipperary for reformation of abuses presented by the Grand Jury at a session held at Clonmel before the Sen[eschal] and Justice of the said County. [regulating wages, service etc.]	8
11 Mar. 1607[8	
Thomas Earl of Ormond. Warrant, his nephew Walter Butler to receive a fee as seneschal.	9
Feb. 1608[09	

10	Thomas, Earl of Ormond to Patrick Archer, Attorney. Warrant for a general pardon for Edmund Boy O'Quirke of Kiloquirke and Mahon Mac Mortagh O'Heffernane.
	July 1609
11	Copy of the King's letter to the Lord Deputy for the Earl of Ormond. c. 1610
12	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant for a free pardon for Edmund Brenocke of Carricke, yeoman and Mathew Mortimer of the same, yeoman.
	27 Mar 1610
13	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant, Piers Butler fitzJames of Lismalin to be Sheriff.
	Dec 1610
14	Piers Butler's bond as Sheriff of Tipperary. Dec 1610
15	Thomas, Earl of Ormond to Robert Roth, treasurer. To remit a fine on Edmund Heyden son of Thomas Heden of Moynane, gent. 28 Feb. 1610 11
16	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for Patrick Purtiall of Moclerston. Mar. 1610 11
17	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for Gillerneys O Hyffernan, yeoman. Sept. 1611
18	Thomas Earl of Ormond. Warrant for a free pardon for John Tobyn of Killaghye.
	Oct. 1611
19	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for Patrick Purtiall of Moclersen, husbandman, Richard Holcroft of Carrick, yeoman, William O'Dwyer of Callan, Co. Kilkenny, yeoman, Rowland Eustace of Kildonyowe, Co. Kildare, gent. Gillernane O Hiffernan of the Rowan, yeoman. Oct. 1611

20	Copy patent for the office of Sheriff of the Liberty. 1612
21	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant, John Meara of Cork, Esq. to be Justice of the Liberty of Tipperary.
	10 Mar 1611 12
22	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for Edmond O'Conea, Edmond Brenagh and John Fitzwilliam O Mulrain of Clanchellowe
	July 1612
23	Thomas, Earl of Ormond to Patrick Archer, Attorney. Warrant, James [Goaghe], knight to be Custos Rotulorum.
	1612
24	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for Edmund O Kinanye, yeoman and Edmund O Brenagh, yeoman of Ballymcknockan, and John Fitzwilliam O Mulryan of Glanechallowe, yeoman.
	10 July 1612
25	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant William [Sent John] of Skaddanston to be Sheriff.
	Oct. 1612
26	Writ of privilege granted to Gilleduffe O Hogbyn of Kelldayngen. Signed Walter Butler, John Everard.
	9 Dec 1612
27	By the Treasurer of the Liberty of the County of Tipperary. Fines assigned to Patrick Archer Esq. Attorney of the Liberty in ward
	his fee Baylife's fyned. [list of fines]. 14 Dec 1612
28	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant for a free pardon for Johane ny Meagher of Leatleragh, spinster, wife of one Tieige Mc Dermod O
	Shanaghane. April 1613
29	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant, John Haly of Cashel to be
	Chancellor. 7 Oct. 1613
30	Thomas Cantwell's bond as Sheriff of the Liberty of Tipperary. Nov 1613

31	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant for a free pardon for Edmond M Philip breine of Kenlesksharrowinye, yeoman.	[c
	Dec.	1613
32	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for John O Cohill of Clonmel, Ov McGille[kihe] of [Ashanesuhar.]	wen
	Dec	1613
33	Thomas, Earl of Ormond to Patrick Archer, Attorney. Warrant Jam-Lord Baron of Dunboyne to be seneschal.	es
	4 Mar 1613	3[14]
34	Thomas, Earl of Ormond. Warrant, Richard Butler of Knocktopher be Sheriff.	to
	Oct.	1614
35	Richard Butler's bond as sheriff to the Liberty of Tipperary. Witnesses: [Foulke] Comerford, Piers Cantwell, William Kelly. Oct.	1614
36	Walter, Earl of Ormond. Warrant. Richard Butler to be Sheriff. 9 Dec.	1614
37	Copy certain points contained amongst other matters in the order ta by Sir Arthur Chichester, Lord Deputy of Ireland and the Council bearing date the 20 Dec. 1614 before Barnaby Lo. Baron of Upper Ossory and John Fitzpatrick Esq.	ken
	Dec.	1614
38	Walter Butlers warrant appointing Doctor Haly Chancellor of the Liberty of Tipperary.	
		615]
39	Copy petition Walter Earl of Ormond to the King. [c. 1]	.615]
40	Copy letter James I to Arthur Chichester, Lord Deputy. Re Earl of Ormond and County Paletine of Tipperary.	
	24 Jan 1614	[15]
41	Walter, Earl of Ormond. Pardon for Teigue O Sea of Bearna. Feb. 1614	[15]

42	Walter, Earl of Ormond. William O Meary of [Lisenoskey] to Sheriff.	
		July 1615
43	Copy certificate concerning the state of the County Palatine of	
	Tipperary.	2 July 1615
44	Copy letter Arthur Chichester to the King. Re Earl of Ormo. County Palatine of Tipperary, 4 items.	nd and the
	County Falatine of Tipperary, 4 Items.	4 July 1615
45	Walter, Earl of Ormond. Warrant for the office of Justice of of Tipperary upon Sir John Everard declining to continue in	<u>-</u>
46	William O Meara's bond as sheriff of the Liberty of Tippera Witnesses, James O [Kinsaly?], Edm. Ryan, William Kelly.	•
47	Earl of Ormond's demands and information concerning the Liberties of Tipperary. With the Lord Deputy's referment unto the Judges and King's learned Counsel.	
	_	an 1615 [16]
48	Walter, Earl of Ormond to Peter Archer, Attorney. Warrant pardon for Rorie O Ferrall.	for a free
		July 1615
49	Walter, Earl of Ormond to Patrick Archer, Attorney. Warran O Bryen of [Annagh?] to be Sheriff.	nt, Dannyell
	· · ·	31 Oct 1616
50	Walter, Earl of Ormond. Warrant for a free pardon for James Meagher	
	of Knockankitt.	Dec 1616
51	Walter, Earl of Ormond. Warrant, Nicholas Newman of Clo	onmel to be
	clerk of the Crown.	an 1616 [17]
52	Walter, Earl of Ormond. Warrant for a free pardon for Edmi	und O
	Sea of Ballyloghnane. 14 Fe	eb 1616 [17]

53	Document re case of Valentine Savage in the Liberty Court of Tipperary.
	[1618?]
54	Gilbert Butler's bond as Sheriff of the Liberty of Tipperary. Witness. Hen[ri] Comerford.
	Jan 1618 [19]
55	Robert Carewe's oath as sheriff [of the Liberty of Tipperary]. 17 Dec. 1619
56	Copy answer of Sir Richard Bolton Lord Chancellor of Ireland and Sir George Shirley Lord Chief Justice Unto the petition by William Smith to Parliament.
	[c. 1620]
57	Copy King's letter re the liberties of Tipperary. 15 June 1620
58	William St. Johns bond as sheriff of Tipperary. Nov 1620
59	Venire Facias Walter Com Ormond et Ossorie et alios quo warranto. [c.1621]
60	Copy of the Quo warranto and sequire of the Liberty Courts. 1621
61	Copy of the report made by the Lord Keeper etc. touching the difference between the Earls of Ormond and Desmond. 16 Jan 1622 [23]
62	Copy commission for Gulielmus Davys to be judge of the Assize in Tipperary.
	[c. 1624?]
63	Humble petition of William O'Kennedy of Ballycahill, Co. Tipperary to the Lord Deputy. With response.
	Dec 1625

64	Copy of Walter Earl of Ormond's petition to his Majesty.	April 1626
65	A copy of the Earl of Ormond's petition presented to his Ma 1627 touching the Liberty of Tipperary.	jesty Dec.
	continuous and according to our province.	Dec 1627
66	Copy report on Judith Lady Maye's petition to the King re b into by her late husband Sir Humphrey Maye as surety for the Desmond to Alderman Parkhurst. Signed T.C.C.S. Ri. Wester Pembroke, Mountgomerie, Tho. Jermin.	ne Earl of
	Temorone, naodnegomerie, rinoi vermini	[c. 1628]
67	[Accounts re debt of Earl of Desmond to the Earl of Middles	sex]. [c. 1628]
68	Copy report on a dispute between the Earl of Desmond and to Middlesex re money owing by the Earl of Desmond to the E Middlesex.	
		b 1627 [28]
69	Copy letter to Walter Earl of Ormond re his right to the Libe Tipperary.	erty of
		b 1627 [28]
70	Copy petition of Walter Earl of Ormond to the King. With re Ma	esponse. ar 1627 [28]
71	Notes for the Earl of Ormond for lands attained in the Libert	y of
	Tipperary in 1780. Copied by Tho. Wilson.	April 1628
72	Copy Charles I letter re dispute between Earl of Desmond ar	nd Earl of
	Middlesex.	May 1629
73-74	Copy petition by the Earl of Ormond concerning the Liberty	of
	Tipperary, 2 items.	Oct. 1629
75	Report of the Committee unto whom his majesty referred the Earl of	
	Ormond's petitions concerning his Liberty of Tipperary.	Oct 1629

76-77	A copy of the Earl of Ormond's petition preferred to his Ma Dec. 1629 concerning the Liberty of Tipperary, 2 copies.	jesty in
	Dec. 1029 concerning the Liberty of Tipperary, 2 copies.	Dec 1629
78	A copy of the acknowledgement of Sir Lawrence Esmonde James Craig.	and Sir
	James Clarg.	[c. 1630?]
79	Propositions to be made by the Earl of Ormond touching the and Liberty of Tipperary.	County
	and Electry of Tipperary.	[c. 1630]
80	Docket containing the substance of the certificate committee Majesty concerning the Liberty of Tipperary on the behalf of of Ormond.	
	or ormand.	[c. 1630]
81	Copy grant to James Earl of Ormond of the Liberty of Tippe life.	erary for
	me.	[c. 1630]
82	Notes re laws in Ireland.	[c. 1630]
83	Copy inspeximus by Henry VIII re Earl of Ormond's lands in 1524.	
		[c. 1630]
84	A note of certain matters to be declared by the Earl of Ormo Kings Majestys honourable counsel. [re liberty court of Tip]	
85	Articles of agreement concluded and agreed between Walter Ormond and Benjamin Ludlowe of Youghal [concern Lands in Co. Tipperary]. Witnesses: George Mathew, Tho. Cha. Walshe.	ing Crege?
		eb 1629 [30]
86	Copy Inquisition taken at Clonmel after the death of Rich Desmond and Elizabeth his wife before Phillip Perciv Liberty of Tipperary] 6p.	
	Liberty of Tipperary] op.	July 1630

87	Notes re Byrr and Ballymackeady leases. c. 1631
88	Receipts and lists of fines levied on William O'Kennedy of Ballycahill, 1614-26 charged on the account of Richard Butler Esq. 1631.
89	Copy report of a commission set up on the deaths of Richard Comerford of Dyrryliagh, Co. Kilkenny and Edward his son re lands of Dyrryleagh held of the manor of Aghaviller, held of Knocktopher etc. 22 Feb 1631 [32]
90	Warrant Mr. John [Mali], Doctor, to be Chancellor of the Liberty of Tipperary. [c.1633]
91	Draft of a letter concerning the Earl of Ormond's Liberty of Tipperary. [c.1633]
92	[Co. Kilkenny: list of jurors and persons convicted at a court held before Patrick Wemys]. April 1635
93	Copy order granting lease of [Icartvici ville] to James Bourke for the minority of his nephew John Bourke. Dec 1635
94	Copy affidavit by John O Kennedy that Theobald Butler of Castlecorron Co. Tipperary and others devastated the lands of John Bourke in [Ikartin Evede]. 19 May 1636
95	Copy petition of James Earl of Ormond. With list of liberties royalties and franchises claimed by the Earl of Ormond in Tipperary. July 1636
96	Corporal Josias Scott, Coolishelbeg to Edward Butler, Dunmore. 2 letters arranging a meeting and re renting a house. Oct 1636

97	Copy judgement by the Seneschal and justice of the Liberty of Tipperary in the case of Maolrony O Mulryan, tenant to William O Cloan O Kennedy v. Knoghor O Cloghese re title of Moneroan, Clonmel 11 Aug. 1608. Copy signed Joh.em Weston, John White,				
	Mayor of Clonmel, James Bray, Town Clerk of Clonmel. June 1637				
98	Copy inquisition held at Clonmel before Viscount Thomas Wentworth, Lord Deputy [and others] into Liberty of Tipperary. Aug 1637				
99	Richard Butler of Kilcash to William Smyth of Damagh, Co. Kilkenny. Letters of attorney about the main profits of lands received from Sir Thomas Butler, Cloughgrenan etc. Signed [], Richard Morres, James Sea.				
	17 th May 1638 With seal.				
100	Sir John Morres of Knockagh, Co. Tipperary. General release to James, Earl of Ormond for £2,357.10. Witnesses, [] Bourke, Francis Morress, James Morres				
	20 Jan 1638[39] With seal				
101	Affidavit re letters of attorney from Jeremy Thornton to his brother Thomas Thornton, London.				
	Oct 1639				
102	A note of the Earl of Ormond's lands in England. [c. 1640]				
103	A note of all such lands as are detained wrongfully from James Earl of Ormond in Rosse				
	[c. 1640]				
104	Lease of the meadows of [Cowlyhill] to Edward Comerford of Callan. Jan 1639[40]				
105	Copy affidavit of Richard Panton re Earl of Desmond's debt to Jerome Thornton.				
	11 Feb 1639[40]				

106	Agreement between Robert Stafford of Dublin on behalf of Sir Robert Parkhurst of London and Edward Comerford on behalf of James Earl of Ormond re assignment of £1,000. Witnesses: [Fran.] [Cranisbrough?], Ja. Comerford, Deber Merry, Tho. [Kesnoldson]. 18 Feb 1639[40] With Seal
107	Bond of John Kenedy of Dublin gent. For the settling of a dispute about a debt between himself and James Earl of Ormond. Witnesses: Baltinglass, Edmund Butler, William Smyth, [] Dec 1640
108	Bond of John Butts, his conveyance of the corn watermill called Blakesmill or the new mill or the Tuckinge mill Co. Kilkenny to Thomas Forstall. Witnesses: Geo Nichols, Thomas [S]eyse, Robert Leynagh.
	Dec 1643
109	By the Commrs. for the Administrations of Justice in Kilkenny. Patrick Green to survey Countess of Ormond's land at Cooleeshelbeg and she is to enter into possession.
	16 July 1655
110	Survey [map] of Cooleeshilbeg and division thereof pursuant to an order from the Commissioners for administration of justice in Kilkenny bearing date 16 July 1655
	1655
111	An exact survey or estimate of the Barony of Fassadinin returned by us the undernamed 'The denomination of the land' 'Quantity of acres;' 'The quality of them', 'The yearly value', Signed Walter [Nosse], Edward [Roatkine], Richard Keys. With a report on the conditions of the Barony. Very bad condition. July 1655
112	A Duplicate of the applotment of one hundred forty two pound imposed on the Barony of Iverk for three months 'Towns', 'Arrears', 'Money', Signed Will. Kenyon, John Mason, Dudley North, John Collins.
	25 June 1658 Poor condition.
113	A note of James Bryn's estate in Kilkenny, an old Protestant and dead before the wars.
114	[c.1660] The King's Sergeant and Attorneys certificate re note of such ancient rolls as are produced by the Earl of Ormond for the maintenance of his liberty of Tipperary.

\sim	• ,	
•	item	C
_	пил	

115	[Draft copy] letters patent restoring James Duke of Ormond to Liberties and Regalities of Tipperary.	the	
	TI wy	[c. 1660]	
116	Spiritual possessions belonging tot he Abbey of [Altshell] grathe Earl of Ormond in 1603.	nted to	
	2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2	[c.1660]	
117	Co. Tipperary: Sir James Ware's certificate concerning the titl Kilcoole.	nes of	
	Micoole.	[c.1660]	
118	Draft offered by the judges of the Common Pleas for extending proclamations to the County Palatine of Tipperary.	g	
	proclamations to the County Falatine of Tipperary.	[c.1660]	
119	Copy grant by Edward III to Earl of Ormond of the Liberties of Tipperary.	of	
	пррстагу.	[c. 1660]	
120	Copy of a record of 21 Edward III Concerning the Liberties of the		
	County of Tipperary etc. compared with the original.	Sept 1660	
121	James, Duke of Ormond. Draft commission to John Walshe of Ballibechan, Co. Tipperary to be seneschal of his estates in Ire		
122	Notes re leases etc. in Kilmore parish, Co. Tipperary.	[c.1662]	
123	A list of land belonging to Duke of Ormond at the time		
	Walter Earl of Ormond was in restraint in England, the Earl of Londonderry and the Lord of Mountgarrett possessed themsel		
	said lands without any right.	[c.1662]	
124	Draft confirmation by Charles II of the Liberties of Tipperary	etc. to	
	James Duke of Ormond.	[c. 1662]	
125	Copy order for respite of quit rents on Duke of Ormond's land	ls in	
	Kilkenny, Tipperary, Meath and Queens Co.	1662	
126	Sara Fairfax, widow of Middlesex, acquitance and general relables of Ormond.	ease to	

127	Drafts, queries, rules etc. concerning the Liberty Court of Tipp	perary. [c.1663]
128	Notes of records of the Liberty of Tipperary not to be [destroy papers belonging to Mr. Purcel, Baron of Couihmo.	red?],
	papers belonging to Mr. I dreet, Baron of Countino.	[c.1663]
129	James, Duke of Ormond to John Bourden. Draft grant of offic Registrar of the Curia of the Liberty of Tipperary.	e of
	Registral of the Curra of the Liberty of Tipperary.	[c.1663]
130	James Duke of Ormond. Draft appointment of a justice.	[c.1663]
131	James, Duke of Ormond. Warrant for a fiant for the Vice Chancellorship of the Liberty Court of Tipperary.	[c.1663]
132	Inmes Duke of Ormand Draft commission for Goodwin Swi	
132	James, Duke of Ormond. Draft commission for Goodwin Swit Attorney of the Liberty Court.	
		[c.1663]
133	James, Duke of Ormond. Warrant, Wm. Mead Esq. to be Esch the Liberty Court of Tipperary.	
		[c.1663]
134	James, Duke of Ormond. Draft warrant, Lodovic Jackson to be prothonotary of the Liberty Court of Tipperary.	e
		[c.1663]
135	James, Duke of Ormond. Draft warrant, Mr. Hartstongue to cofines in the Liberty of Tipperary.	ollect
		[c.1663]
136	By the Lord of the Regalities and Liberties of the County of T Copy warrant for a writ of Adquod damnum, Co. Tipperary.	ipperary:
		[c.1663]
137	Copy of the patent of the Court Palatine in Tipperary in English	sh, 8p. 1663
138	James, Duke of Ormond. Warrant, William Hamilton Esq. to of the Market and Sealer of Linen and woollen cloth and leath Co. Tipperary.	
	co. 22ppoint.	1663
139	Receipt for Duke of Ormond's commission for the Liberty of Tipperary.	

140	John Maynard's contract for the lease of a house in St. Mar	ye's St.
	[Rosse?]. Witnesses: Ilas Bathorne, Tho. Power.	2 May 1663
141	Copy warrant appointing Portreeve of Rosberron.	4 May 1663
142	Patt. White, contract for his holdings in Rosse. Witness: The	no. Power. 5 May 1663
143	Warrant from the Earl of Arran, seneschal of Tipperary to establish William Brittin in possession of lands at Bayly [w	
144	Ja. Kearney to John Walsh, Dublin. Re legal business, lease	es etc. 11 Aug 1663
145	James Kearney to John Walsh, Dublin. Re proceedings in t Court of Tipperary and fees.	he Liberty
	Court of Tipperary and Ices.	2 Oct 1663
146	Sir Thomas Longeuville, Clonmel to John Walsh, Dublin. I at Clonmel.	Re sessions
		Jan 1663 [64]
147	Ja. Kearny, Clonmel to John Walshe, Dublin. Report on pro- Clonmel court.	oceedings at
		Jan 1663 [64]
148	Jo. Harrison, Cloughjordan to John Walsh, Dublin Re bond 4 F	l etc. Feb 1663 [64]
149	James Kearny, Cashel to Sir William Davys, Chief Justice, Tipperary Re date of the Assizes etc.	Co.
	11 •	Feb 1663 [64]
150	Jury list, Co. Tipperary Man	rch 1663 [64]
151	Will. Domville to John Walsh. Refers to Lord Middlesex's Sir Tho. Soames.	account and
	Sir Tho. Southes.	3 Sept. 1664
152	A Brief taken of chief rent from the inhabitants of the B Forth on the behalf of his Grace James, Duke of Ormond.	•
	Poor condition.	20 Sept. 1664

153	Co. Carlow. A list of such lands as Murtagh Og Kavanagh was possessed of in the year 1641		
	[Sept. 1644]		
154	Edmund Byrne's return: A list of such lands in the Barony of Forth and County of Carlow as paid the chiefery to the House of Ormond formerly and possessed by Irish Papists in 1641 which lands are since the usurped power possessed by the undernamed persons With names of Jurors touching the Inquisition. 6p. [Sept. 1664]		
155	Walter Birnes account of the chief rents due to the Duke of Ormond out		
	of the Barony of Fortnolane. 28 Sept. 1664		
156	A list of lands claimed by the lord Kingston for his response wherein the Duke of Ormond is concerned in Co. Tipperary.		
	Poor condition 1003		
157	A state of the Palatinate of Tipperary in respect to forfeitures due to Duke of Ormond.		
	[c.1665]		
158	Draft instrument for reducing the Tithes in the Palatinate of Tipperary. [c.1665]		
159	Richard Butler pet., Robert Lowe, deft. To justify the proceedings by bill in the County Palatine		
160	[c. 1665] Draft commission for Sir Thomas Longevill to be Master of the Rolls for Tipperary.		
	c.1655		
161	Draft petition drawn by Mr. Noye concerning the Liberties of Tipperary.		
	c. 1665?		
162	James, Duke of Ormond. Draft commission, Sir Richard Butler to be seneschal of Tipperary.		
163	Draft of a commission for receiving and reducing fines and forfeitures in County Tipperary.		
	c. 1655		
164	Draft warrant appointing George Say, deputy treasurer of the Liberty of Tipperary.		
	18 Jan 1664 [65]		
165	Thad. Brien, Curryhyne to John Walsh. Re lands at Cruary, Barony of		

Owney	and A	Arra,	Co.	Tipperary.
-------	-------	-------	-----	------------

22 April 1665

166 Petition of Christopher Perkins to Richard Earl of Arran re verdict of manslaughter against him. June 1665 167 Robert Lovelace's counterpart lease for 3 mills in Clonmel Liberties from Duke of Ormond. Witnesses: [], Ri. Dennison, James [], Tho. [] With seal 26 July 1665 168 Counterpart lease Dennis Heagen of Clonmel with John Bourden on behalf of the Duke of Ormond for the fishing "weare" called the "crooked weare" ... James Hogan, Tho. [Prindergast] 26 July 1665 With seal 169 Counterpart lease Mr. William Hanbury for John Hoper of the [F]ahy mill, Clonmel, Witnesses, Tho. [Prinderfast], James Fagan 26 July 1665 170 Affidavit that James Butler, uncle to the Duke of Ormond, owned Knockballyroe, signed [] [Ryan], David Rourk, W.B., Donnough G. Patrick, Richard Bourke 2 October 1665 171 Copy evidence of Daniel Kirby re attack on Nicholas White's lands [at Newtown Co. Tipperary]. [1666] 172 Robert Clarke, Gallaway, to John Welch, Dublin Seneschal, asking his assistances in his dealings with the Earl of Arran. 24 August 1666 173 Humble petition of Edward Butler of Templeheny, Co. Tipperary to the Duke of Ormond, [against a conviction for robbery] October 1666 174 Warrant for a pardon to [Edward Butler of Templeheny] 22 October 1666 175 Unsigned fiant for a pardon for Edward Butler. 22 October 1666

176 Copy writ for the Seneschal of Tipperary	[23 November 1666?]			
177 Account of the fines at the Court of Clonmel.				
	June 1668			
William Lane's evidence re ownership of Knockar Foukscourt. Gallmoy Barony, Co. Kilkenny	nedonoughmore etc.,			
	25 July 1668			
A Brief of such officers of the Court [Tipperary] as Treasury	s are in arrears in the			
Treasury	September 1668			
Copy commission to Roger Earl of Orrery from Ch	harles II to be Justice. [c. 1670]			
Copy draft order by Richard Earl of Arran, Senesc	hal of the Liberties of			
Tipperary.	[c. 1670?]			
[Draft summons to attend hearing at Clonmel in the Ormond V. Johanna Kieffe].	e case of the Duke of [c. 1670]			
The setting of the Duke of Ormond's titles in Co. I Co.	Kilkenny, Queens [c. 1670]			
List of lands mainly in Co's. Tipperary and Kilken	iny. [c. 1670]			
Draft of the covenant with Francis Eustace [for the	e lease of lands] [c 1670]			
Incomplete	[6 10/0]			
Col. Caulfield's proposal to lease lands at Clone, A Rabeaugh.	Col. Caulfield's proposal to lease lands at Clone, Airegare and			
rucous	[c 1670?]			
John Butler's claim for expenses for journeys to C Seneschal for the Duke of Ormond.	John Butler's claim for expenses for journeys to Clonmel to act as			
Scheschar for the Duke of Ormond.	[c. 1670]			
	Cond. Regal et Libertat. Tipperary: [List of] Judicial and ministerial			
officers and their pensions. 6 July 1670				
Copy Mr. Alcocke's declaration [re theft of cattle]	. For Mr. John			

Walsh. Latin 30 September 1670
Declaration by Peter Read concerning lands at Rosse in Co. Wexford. [c. 1671]
Part of draft re Duke of Ormond V. William Ivory, New Ross, Co. Wexford.
[c 1671] Proofs and witnesses in the dispute between the Duke of Ormond and Captain Ivory re lands at Rosse, Co. Wexford.
[c 1671] 2 items
Copy deposition re Thomas Miller and lands at New Ross. [c 1671]
194 Co. Wexford: Brian Fitzwilliam and William Fitzwilliam. [c 1671]
Co. Wexford: List of jurors in case Thomas Miller v. James, Duke of Ormond.
[c 1671]
Release by James Travers of debts due by the Duke of Ormond. 19 April 1671
With seal
197 Counsel's opinion about the signing of mandates etc. by the Seneschal of Tipperary on foot of executions etc. from the four courts in Dublin. 3 June 1671
A list of all reducements to be considered at the Court of Clonmel. Received from Mr. Kearny.
20 December 1671
Commission appointing Gamalielum Warter to Office in Co. Tipperary: [February 1671 [72]]
Note re moneys received by Edward Butler, Treasurer of the Liberty Courts in 1672
[October 1672]
Treasurer's account of the Liberty Courts from April 1663 to 24 October 1671: Signed Edward Butler.
3 October 1672
The state of the account of Eliah Greene, High Sheriff. Tipperary 11 October 1672

Copy / drafts of letter to Duke of Ormond re the Liberty Courts of Tipperary.	203	
10 May 167		
O5 State of the Duke of Ormond's advantage by his Liberty Courts. 2 June 167	204-05	
6 Sir William Davys' receipt for the seal of the Liberty Courts. 11 July 167	206	
7 Acq[uitances] sent to Thomastown 29 October 167	207	
Draft patent for the Earl of Arran appointing Sir William Davis and Sir Thomas Longeuville justices of the Liberties. [1674]	208	
Witnesses Val Smyth, Lawrence Smyth.	209	
With seal 6 February 1673 [74		
Ld. Lieut. and Council to the Mayor and sheriffs of Kilkenny. Re proclamation for publishing the peace between the King and the states General of the United Netherlands.	210	
10 March 1673 [74		
1 Award with Lewis Loghlin and his wife. 23 March 1673 [74]	211	
The Treasurer's account of the Liberty Courts of Tipperary. Signed M.		
Kearny, Dep. Treas. 8 October 167		
Valuation of the titles in Co. Limerick etc., for apportionment 19 October 167	213	
Copy discharge to Edward Butler the Treasurer. 30 October 167	214	
5 A case concerning the Liberty of Tipperary [c. 1675]	215	
By the Lords of the Regalities and Liberties of the County of Tipperary Draft power to Sir William Davys to collect fines.	216	
[c. 1675°	217	

Treasurer's account of the Liberty Courts of Tipperary. 16 Apr	ril 1675		
•	Draft and copy agreement with Robert Lowe of Fethard for the levying		
of the fines of the Liberty Court for the Duke of Ormond.	ay 1675		
2 items	iy 1075		
220 Copy warrant for Sir William Davies to issue commissions for le the fines.	vying		
	ne 1675		
satisfaction for their services as curates. With Ormond's response	Copy petition to the Duke of Ormond by John Dassy and others for satisfaction for their services as curates. With Ormond's response. 31 August 1675		
The order of apportionment of the Duke of Ormond's titles, Co's Tipperary, Limerick, Clare, Kerry.	.		
23 February 16	75 [76]		
George Matthew to Richard Purcell of Thurles. Order to pay £30 John Marriott, curate to Holy Cross etc. With his acquitance.	to		
April-Ma	ıy 1676		
224 Sir Nicholas Plunkett's opinion re monopoly of strong waters in Tipperary.			
4 September	er 1676		
225 Attestation re bounds of Jerpoint. 10 October	er 1676		
John Walsh to George Mathew: Re commission for Jon de Walsh 21 November			
Copy of the proposal for the fines of Clonmel [c.	1677?]		
Heads of an offer to Mr. Lowe about collecting the fines for the I	Liberty		
Court of Tipperary.	1677		

229	Copy Inquisition lands of John Butler at Powersland etc. Co. Tipperary, 1631		
	1031	27 February 1676[77]	
230	Writ of error out of a County Palatine in Ireland.	[1678]	
231	Copy note re holders of titles in Tipperary, 1679.	[1679]	
232	Co. Tipperary. The examinations of Robert Lowe taken before Bartholomew Fouke Esq. Seneschal Moore of Clonmel who had told soldiers they mu	[against Richard	
233	Duke of Ormond etc., Richard Hamerton deft., pa Henry Turner.		
		[c. 1680]	
Particulars of the apportioned title rent paid and due, C Limerick, Clare, Kerry.		lue, Co's. Tipperary,	
	•	1680	
235	Profit of judicial places in Tipperary from Mr. Ke	earny. 9 Mar 1680 [81]	
236	Calculation of the profit of judicial offices in the Palatinate Court by		
	estimate from Mr. James Kearny.	9 Mar 1680 [81]	
237	Note re Tho Purcell lease of Clone.	31 August 1681	
238	Discovery made by James Conely from Cashel of conceded lan Cashel. 23 June	. of conceded land in	
		23 June 1682	
239	Court of the Liberties of Tipperary to the Kings Attorney and solicitor		
	General. Referring a petition for consideration. Septemb		
240	Copy grant by Duke of Ormond of the Stewardship etc. of Co. Tipperary to Theobald Butler of Lincolns Inn. 6 June 1683		
242	Richard Butler pet. v. Robert Lowe, Dept. Notes for Robert Lowe's		
	defence.	[? July 1684]	

243	List of books and papers relating to the writ of error between Butler p and Lowe deft. Left in custody of Richard Graham.		
	9 July 1684		
244	A copy of the jury and verdict [Brabazon v. Ward and Levett] at Clonmel. 13 September 1684		
245	Duke of Ormond's title to Regalities in Tipperary, to advise with Council if his Grace may create Manors etc.		
	31 January 1684 [85]		
246	Clonmel Assizes. Order re Sir Robert Cole. 14 September 1685		
247	Richard Turner, London to Capt. George Matthew, Thomastown. Pemberton's opinion re Duke of Ormond's title to the Regalities of Tipperary.		
	21 January 1685 [86]		
248	Copy Val. Smyth, Kilkenny to Peter Read re Liberty Courts of		
	Tipperary, their power to try High Treason. 3 March 1685 [86]		
249	Opinion of Counsel (Ri. Nagle) about the Liberty Courts of Tipperary,		
	their powers to try treason. 18 March 1685 [86]		
250	Mr. Nagle's opinion about trying treason in the Liberty Courts. 23 March 1685 [86]		
251	Michael Kearny to Valentine Smith: Liberty Courts treasurers accounts. 18 March 1687		
252	Account of Capt. Walcott's stock wherewith [Isaacke?] Walden late High Sheriff charged himself in the year 1684 as of felon's goods. By Michael Kearny. 25 May 1687		
253	Liberty Courts account from Mr. Kearny. 6 July 1687		
254	[List of] officers in the Liberty Courts from Mr. Kearny. 8 April 1688		
255	Ex rotulo Patentium Edward III: copy of the grant of the Liberties of Tipperary to the Ormonds.		
	Poor condition [1690?].		
256	The usage of the Liberty of Tipperary, notes re the grant of the Liberties of Tipperary to the Earls of Ormond and its operation. [1690?]		

257	Sir John Mead's opinion re Duke of Ormond's right to forfeited lands of felons etc. in Co. Tipperary.	
	21 November 1690	
258	Humble petition of James Duke of Ormond to the Lords Justices of Ireland [re forfeitures] [December 1690]	
259	Copy extract roll of fines levied in Co. Tipperary. 12p April 1691	
260	Bond of Edmund Bourke and Thomas Bourke to the Duke of Ormond. With seals. 1 June 1696	
261	Richard Ballard lessee of the Duke of Ormond plaintiff, Ann Lackar deft.,: Brief declaration [re lease of a house in Carrick] 3 Copies [1700?]	
262	Fines and Duke's silver due to the Duke of Ormond since the late war in Clonmel from the offices in the County Palatine of Tipperary. [c1700?]	
263	Attorney General of Tipperary v. Peter Hayden. Draft bill [for the recovery of rent].	
	Incomplete c. 1700	
264	Draft bill [Duke of Ormond] v. William Hayden [c. 1700]	
265	Orders from William Worth and others to Josias Haydock to issue payments on behalf of the Duke of Ormond. With some receipts, 10 items. 1701-02	
266	Cover for payments to Sir John Meade [Seneschal of Tipperary] 1702	
267	Legal account of the Duke of Ormond, 2 items. 1 July 1702	
268 269	Legal account of Lord Cornwallis. Tho. Barnes to John Marshall: Instructions for drawing a bill in chancery against Mr. Garrett Meagh. 1 July 1702 13 July 1708	
270	Duke of Ormond's Attorney General pl., Garret Meagh deft. [cover only] 9 October 1708	
271	Duke of Ormond v. Thos Hopkins: Order for an attachment against the deft. 2 May 1709	
272	Joseph Kelly for Duke of Ormond v. Jerome McGrath: that the defendant was served with an order to appear before the Court of the Regalities of Tipperary.	
	14 January 1709 [10]	

	The State of the case as to the fines and forfeitures of the County
P	Palatine of Tipperary. [c. 1710?]
274 R	Rules against the sheriffs.
2	1712-13 Litems
	Copy rules against the sheriffs. By Anthony Carroll, Deputy Prothonotary of the Liberty Court.
	Oct. 1712, April 1713
u	Rules made in the Palatinate of Tipperary and particulars to be moved upon by the Attorney General on behalf of Lord of the Regalities. [Re lebts, fines etc].
ū.	[1712]
	Notes re setting of titles in Clonmel 1712; with notes re necessity for a Clerk of the Estreats in Tipperary.
	1712
	A list of all the recognisances of the former sheriffs to be brought into
U	he Court. 16 July 1713
	An Account of money received by James Harrison, Treasurer for the
C	County Palatine of Tipperary. 14 April 1713
	oseph Kelly for Duke of Ormond v. Theobald Butler: re moneys due
10	for improvements. 18 April 1713
	III Ormond Papers – Prisage of Wines
	-
	Occuments relating to the administration of the prisage of wines held by the Earl of Ormond.
	1576-1704 1804-07
1. '	A copy of the annexed inspeximus'.
	1576
	Copy inspeximus restoration of Earl of Ormond to his lands, prizewines etc. 1499

[c 16 - ?]

3. The abstract for the prize wines of Wexford [Ormond's title]. [16 -] 4. A brief of the charter of Wexford and the copy of the pleadings of the prize wines in the chancery. [16 -] 5. [Extracts from the Rolls] [16 -] 6. Memo' It is for the Kings service that the prizewines should be under the ... Commrs. Of the Revenue. [16 -] 7. A copy of Mr. Calthrop's [opinion re prisage] [c 16 -] 8. Copy letter Sir William Skeffington Lord Deputy declaring the Earl of Ossory's right to the undisturbed possession of the prisage of Youghal and Kinsale, c 1530. Copied by Edward Walshe. [16 -]9. By the Justice of Assize in the County of Galway: order against Thomas Smith of Galway to pay prisage to the Earl of Ormond. 1607 10. Order for answer to be drawn up in favour of Earl of Ormond in his case v. George Stafford and others of the towns of Wexford. May 1609 Mr. Partick Goughe's bond touching the prize wines of Dublin, to 11. perform the provisions of the lease of 1613. Witnesses: Go. Morryson,

Ja. Fennel, [Helias] Archer, Robert [Taylles], Cha. Walshe, [Goid]

1613

Fennell

12	Earl of Ormond to the Earl of Cork seeking payment for the prize wine	
	of Dungarvan. 20 March 1625	
13	A constat out of the Rolls in the chancery of Ireland touching the [prizewines]. Attested by Jacob [Neckman?]	
14	A copy of the assignment by James Butler and Nicolas Everard of Fethard, Co. Tipperary of the prizewines of Youghal and Kinsale to Sir Lawrence Parsons. Witnesses, Oliver Eustace, Henry Bennet.	
15	Michael Cormick's bond to James Butler for the prizewines of Galway and Connacht. Witnesses Oly Eustace, Walter Forstall. 28 June 1629 Seal damaged	
16	David [] to James Butler re prisage due from Kinsale, Crookhaven and Baltimore. 13 July 1629	
17	Michael Cormick to James Butler re prizewines of Galway. [c. 1630]	
18	Account of wines shipped into Youghal and Kinsale, Dublin, Waterford, Cork, Limerick and Galway, c 1626-30, 2 items. [1630]	
19	A collection of all such wines as have been discharged in the several ports of Ireland to the quantity of wine tonne 16p, 1626-30 [1630]	
20	List and details of the leases of the prizewines of Dublin, 1616-30 [1630]	
21	Account of wines shipped to the ports of [Dublin?] Londonderry. Carrickfergus, Drogheda. With note of receipt of Sir Valentine Browne's bonds by Daniell O'Lery.	
22	A copy of the lease made of the prizewines of Galway to Robert Lyllies and Patrick Lyllies by Walter, Earl of Ormond. 24 August 1630	

23	William Haly's bill re prisewines. Witnesses: James Butler, Shee.	
	Seal damaged.	December 1630
	Sear damaged.	
24	Mr. William Bluett's account for the prisage of You John Shee, steward, 1629-31.	ughal, signed by
		[1631]
25	Patrick Darcy his note for mortgaging the prisewing Earl of Ormond.	es of Galway for the
		8 February 1630[31]
26	Counterpart lease of the prisewines of Galway and Patrick Darcy. Witnesses: Walter Blake, Terlagh[Ó Shee.	_
		4 February 1630[31]
27	Articles of agreement between Edward Jans of Dublin and Roy Lyndon of Carrickfergus [re prisewines of Antrim, and the of Donaghdee, Bangor, Gilgroomes and Halliwood, Co. Down]. Witnesses: William [Enery], James [S]irdan.	
		27 March 1632
28	Seriant Henden's opinion re case concerning prisev	vines 6 March 1634[35]
29	Seriant [Ragshe] Whitfield's opinion re case conce	rning prisewines. 6 March 1634[35]
30	Incomplete document in latin re prisewines.	May 1636
31	An account of such prisewines as have been import Ross from 9 October 1637 and demanded by Anthothe Earl of Ormond1637-39	
	the Eart of Official1037-37	1639
32	Petition of James Earl of Ormond and Ossory again Edward Hoar and John Hoar re prisewines of Dung	
	Zummu 110m mmu vomi 110m 10 prison milos 01 Z umg	19 July 1639
33	Copy answer of John Hore, Patrick Russell and Edupetition of the Earl of Ormond re prise wines of Du Copied by William Cadogan.	
	copied by William Cadogan.	[c. July-Nov 1639]

Earl of Ormond to Edward Comerford, Dublin re financial matters letting of land, asking about prisewines.

November 1639

- Letter of authority from Earl of Ormond to Edward Comerford to dispose of the prisewines of Dublin, Louth, Antrim and Down.
 Witnesses: [F. Lame?], Edmund Butler, William Smyth.

 10 November 1639
 With Seal.
- The replication of James Earl of Ormond to the answers of John Hoar, Patrick Russell and Edward Hoar.

21 November 1639

- Letter of attorney from Earl of Ormond to Edward Comerford to go into account with Edward Jans for ... prisewines of Dublin. Witnesses: [P Norrys], [F. Lame?], William Smyth.

 With Seal. 25 November 1639
- Warrant from James Earl of Ormond to Thomas [] of Drogheda for collecting the prisewines of Drogheda.

30 December 1639

Earl of Ormond to Sir Valentine Brown re payment to Ralph Capron and money due from prisewines.

24 February 139[40]

- 40 Letter from Robert Southwell to Sir Valentine Brown re prise wines of Kinsale and Ralph Capron 8 March 1639 [40]
- Copy interrogatories to be administered to witnesses on the behalf of John Hoare, Patrick Russell, Edward Hoare defts., James, Earl of Ormond ... complt. [Re prisewines of Dungarvan]. With depositions of Nicholas Nagle, Richard Stephenson, James Goffe, all of Dungarvan taken at Kilthomas, Co. Waterford. 12 June 1640. Signed James Walsh, Edmund. Mandervill, Robert Nayler, Fr. Foulke, 9p.

1640

Copy interrogatories to be administered to witnesses ... on the behalf of ... James, Earl of Ormond ... pet., John Hoare, Patrick Russell, Edward Hoare, deft. [Re prisewines of Dungarvan]. With depositions of Adam [Seng?], Katherine Lynch. William Myles, Lewis O Mulriane all of Carricke in Griffin, Co. Tipperary, John Butler of Tinchaly, Co. Waterford, James Goffe of Dungarvan, 2 June 1640. Signed James Walsh, Edm. Mandervill, Robert Nayler, Fr. Foulke, 19p

1640

Petition of James Earl of Ormond v. John Hore. Patrick Russell and Edward Hore deft. Re prisewines of Dungarvan. With note re date fixed

More witnesses to be produced about the prisewines ... as occasion shall require [extracts from Rolls].

[c.1641]

- Bond of Nicholas Browne, attorney to the Earl of Ormond ... to perform his duties with regard to the prisewines of Dublin, and ports in Louth and Ulster. Signed and sealed Nicholas Browne, Edward Delamar, Nicholas Synnott. Witnesses: Edward Comerford, Richard Nayler, Maurice Lonergan.

 With seal
- Account of the prisewines received by Robert Southwell in ... Kinsale ... March 1637 to July 1640 when Sir Roger Shaghnes entered upon it.

 1641
- Copy bond Earl of Ormond, Gerald Fenell, Edward Comerford to Edward Jans. Witnesses: William Smith, Edward Butler, Francis Taylor, Henrie Feeder, John Comerford, [Peter] Fourd.

 25 January 1640[41]
- Interrogations to be administered to witnesses on the behalf of the Earl of Ormond pet., Nicholas Nagle and Tristram Whettcambe defts [re prise wines of Youghal and Waterford] with depositions of Dominick Lynch of Waterford, William Bluett of Youghal, Nicholas Lea of Waterford, Oliver [Bullen] of Pilltown, John Neale of Ballymayne, Tipperary, Maurish Hogan of Kingsalebegg, Co. Waterford, Richard Nicholas of Youghal, John Butler of Tighally, co. Waterford, taken at Kilmacthomas, Co. Waterford, 28 January 1641. Signed James Walsh, Andrew Syme, Paule Carewk, [E. Kynes?] 40p.

1641

49 Account of ... prisage wines Robert Southwell received in ... Kinsale ... October 1636 ... to March 1637 as ... Sir Valentine Browne entered upon it.

25 September 1641

Acquitance of Alderman Edward Jans to Earl of Ormond for £425.00 13 January 1641[42]

- Edward Jans, London, to Edward Comerford, Dublin re prisewines, and mentioning proceedings in Council chamber re Statute of limitations and statute re lands of Connaght, Tipperary etc.

 19 January 1641[42]
- Patr. Darcy's 'The state of the prisewines of Galway until this date'. 16 June 1650
- A copy receipt from the Marquess of Ormond to Patrick Darcy for £195.13 due from the prise wines 6 July 1650
- The account of the third part of the prisewines of ... Galway received by Patrick Darcy since the death of the Countess Dowager. Signed Ger Fenell.

 6 July 1650
- 55 [Extracts from the Rolls re prise wines]. [c. 1660]
- Note on prisage and a list of the agreed rates. [c.1660]
- Briefs out of the rolls in the Tower and in chancery Lane [re prise wines] for my Lord of Ormond.

 1660
- Matthew Harrison to Countess of Ormond re prise wines, the difficulties of getting in the prisage, articles of agreement with trustees, Dr. Fenell etc., power to be sent to let the prise wines.

 18 April 1660
- Copy of Ormond's authority to Matthew Harrison for the prise wines signed August 1660, May 1661.

 3 December 1661

 August 1660-Dec 1661
- Matthew Harrison to countess of Ormond. Re setting the prisage, how was it collected formerly, customs and excise, the proprietors of the Baronies of Dundalk and Louth.

 24 October 1660
- William Flower to Countess of Ormond re mortgage money due to Martin, arrears due of the Marquess of Ormond's lands payable to the exchequer, the bonds taken for the titles, the prisewines, Sir Henry Tichbourne's lease.

 4 November 1660
- Copy Countess of Ormond to William Flower. Re cheiferyes, Abbott's interest in Nenagh, arrears due of Sir Robert Meredith, Cloughgrenan house ... original grant of prisage not to be found but evidence to be

20	NT 1	1//
70	November	しんんし
40	TAGACIIIOCI	1000

	1 .		
COLL	oht.	etc.	
SOU	gm	cic.	

63	Matthew Harrison, Dunmore Mr. G[eorge] L[ane]. Re his visits to
	various ports re the prise wines and his settings of them.
	4 January 1660[61]

William Flower, Tho. Harman, Jo. Bourden to Countess of Ormond. Re Ormond's debts, mortgages made to English, accounts to be furnished of setting of lands, prisewines, chieferyes, bills of exchange accepted by Alderman Bellingham for Spanish money, his Majesty's letters, her ladyship to come over in the Spring.

16 January 1660[61]

- Deputy Mayor and Sheriffs of Waterford to James Marquess of Ormond resigning their interest in the prisewines of Waterford.

 18 January 1660[61]
- James Copinger, agent for the inhabitants of the City of Cork, to James Marquess of Ormond, resigning their interest in the prisewines.

 21 February 1660[61]
- John Walsh to Countess of Ormond. Recommendations re the better administration of the prisage, re mortgages and lessees, re lands near Thurles, Cashel and Clonmel, and other matters re Ormond estates.

 23 February 1660[61]
- Matthew Harrison to Countess of Ormond. Re prisewines estate and financial business. Enclosed list of proprietors and lands in Upper Ormond, Co. Tipperary, 'given to captain Sault ... for his arrears!

 20 March 1660[61]
- Draft of the release given by Nicholas Haly of his interest in the prise wines of Limerick.

 8 April 1661
- An account of the setting of ... prisewines in ... Ireland for the year ending 25 April 1661. Signed Tho Harman, [Edw.]Butler, Jo. Bourden.

 16 April 1661
- 71 List of wines imported throughout Ireland from Christmas 1662 to Christmas 1663. [1663]
- Questions concerning recovery by Duke of Ormond of prisewines from 'J.S.' with opinion18 January

 1663[64]
- Copy Duke of Ormond's acquitance to Richard Gethin and Joseph Deane of £500 for prisage of wine. 26 April 1664
- An account of the produce of prisage of wines for 1672-74.

[1674]

75	Copy Capt. John Stone to Capt. George Mathew re defalcations of prisewines etc		
	5 June 1675		
76	Bond of Sir James Shane, William Rider, William Muschampe, Edward Russell, Lawrence Stannian, John Gourney, Thomas Sheridan of the City of Dublin to the Duke of Ormond. Witnesses: Theobald Mathew. William [Lamvay?]		
	With seal		
77	Gerard Bor to Henry Gascoigne. Re Difficulty of obtaining money from farmers, prisewines three gales behind, and other matters. 24 December 1682		
78	'A note how the prisewines of the North were set' – Drogheda, Callenford, Dundalk, Carrickfergus, Londonderry, Strangford. [c1683]		
79	'Account of the prisage delivered the January of 1683' January 1683		
80	Prisage accounts 4p., 1683-86 [1686]		
81	Prisage accounts 1683-86, with summary totals 1676-82 [under Sir James Shaen]. Endorsed 'The calculation of the loss sustained by Sir James Shaen and his partners for the years they held the prisage…!'		
82	Copy Duke of Ormond's authority to Sir Stephen Fox to receive the prisewines in Ireland [from the Receiver General of his Majesty's Revenue].		
	1686		
83	John Ellis to Capt. George Matthew. Re prisage money 9 May 1688		
84	John Ellis to Capt. George Matthew. Re his attempts to get the prisage from the Lord Deputy.		
	24 July 1688		
85	John Ellis undertaking to send Capt. George Matthew an account and a receipt of the prisage. Witness: Thomas Shee.		
86	23 August 1688 'Case of prisage: The Duke of Ormond's title to the prisewines of Ireland: Signed Jo. Longan, 3 Dec 1688. Concurred Robt. Doynes, William Domvill, Jac. Meade.		
	Dec 1688 – Jan 1688[89]		

Memo re Duke of Ormond's contract with the King for the prisage

87

25 May 1702

88 Copy Duke of Ormond's petition re lease of the [prisage and] butlerage. Referred from Ld. Treasurer to Commrs. Of the Revenue in Ireland. 25 May 1704 89 Copy of the Duke of Ormond's directions for payment of the prisage to Sir Stephen Fox. Witnesses: Fran. Wright. Hen. Wood, Tho. Gearing 30 September 1704 90 Incomplete document re appointment of a taster for wines in Dublin port to prevent abuses of prisage and excise. [c. 1707] 91 The Queen to the Ld. Lieutenant of Ireland. To Direct a lease to be taken by the Commrs. Of the Revenue from the Duke of Ormond of the prisage for ten years from ... 1711. 7 April 1707 92 Copy of the Duke of Ormond's lease of prisage and butlerage to the Commrs. Of the Revenue in Ireland. 16 August 1707 93 'The Duke's ... arising by prisage on wines have amounted ... 1714 1721 to the following sums'. [1721] 94 Port of Drogheda. A return of the number of vessels that have arrived in this port with wine from 1 Jan 1801. Signed [J.H.] Foster 13 February 1804 95 Earl of Ormond to William Stammer power of attorney to receive prisage and butlerage of wines in the port of Dublin March 1804 96 Earl of Enniskillen the Rt. Hon Maurice Fitzgerald to William Stammer power of attorney for prisage in Dublin port.

IV Ormond Papers – Dingwall Case.

Ms. 11,046 Papers concerning Walter, Earl of Ormond and the claims made against him by Richard Preston, Lord Dingwall, later Earl of Desmond and his wife, Elizabeth, daughter of Thomas, Earl of Ormond. With a few later items re Dingwall title, 57 items

1609[10] – 25 [1662?]

1807

1 Brief of Lord Dingwall

2	Copy letter Arthur Chichester, Lo. Deputy etc., to Earl of Orn 9 February	
3	The state of the case concerning Ely O Carroll [assigned to Lo	ord Tully] [c 1614]
4	The new Earl of Ormond's title to all the possessions of the la Ormond and to all the possessions of Theobald, late Lo. Visc	
	Including list of possessions, 4p	[1614]
5	The case between Richard Lord Dingwall and the Lady Elizabuife and Walter Butler, now Earl of Ormond, 2p.	oeth his
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	[1614-19]
6	A copy of the Dingwall's case.	[c 1614]
7	The case of the Earl of Ormond v. Lord Dingwall.	[1614-19]
8	'The case between the Earl of Ormond and the Lord Dingwall Lady his wife is shortly thus!' [Lawyer's opinion, signed F Houghton.]	
	Toughton.	[c 1614]
9	'The case between the Earl of Ormond and the Lord Dingwall Lady his wife is shortly thus! Sir Henry Mountague his oping Lady Desmond, S Henry Hobert and Judge Dodridge again	nion for
10	Copy case touching the Earl of Ormond's lands goods and chattels.	
	Signed Fr. Bacon, Henry Yelverton, Jo. Walter.	[1614-19]
11	Copy of the Earl of Ormond's case with his counsel's opinion Tho. Harris, Geo. Crooke, Humfrey Davenport, William Noye	_
12	The answer of Walter Earl of Ormond to the complaint of Lor	[1614-19] d and
	Lady Dingwall touching the Viscount Tullies debt. Very bad condition	[1614-19]
13	Letter from Walter, Earl of Ormond to Mr. Archer to attend a	n inquiry. 1614
14	The Lord and Lady Dingwall's petition to the Lord Deputy and directions thereon [re lands belonging to late Viscount Butler Tulleophelin in Kilkenny and Wicklow].	

15 The copy of the agreement between the ... Earl of Ormond and the Lord Dingwall and his Lady for the goods and chattels.

8 November 1615

The humble petition of the Lord Dingwall to the Lord Deputy with his order thereon. [James Butler Fitzpiers to vacate the manor of Fouke, Co. Kilkenny]. Order signed Arthur Chichester etc.

5 May 1615

Humble petition of Richard Lord Dingwall and the Lady Elizabeth his wife to the Lord Deputy with his order thereon [order to Captain Butler to allow Lord Dingwall the quiet possession of Cloughgrennan, Co. Carlow etc.]

27 August 1615

Walter Earl of Ormond, London, to Mr. Patrick Archer, Kilkenny to search for certain papers.

February 1615[16]

Depositions in the behalf of the Lord Dingwall [and Earl of Ormond]. Witnesses Sir John Everard, Robert Rothe of Kilkenny, Walter Lawless of Kilkenny. Signed Humprey May.

April 1616

Depositions on behalf of Richard Lord Dingwall and Elizabeth Lady Dingwall; depositions of witnesses taken on the behalf of Captain Thomas Butler against Richard Lord Dingwall and Lady Elizabeth his wife. 6p.

[1617]

Copy humble petition of Richard Lord Dingwall and Lady Elizabeth Dingwall to the Lord Deputy re Capt. Thomas Butler, his examination by Sir Richard Boyle, and Elinor Butler, widow.

[1617]

21A Certain objections made by the Lord Dingwall's counsel Walter Archer to the draft of the certificate drawn up by Captain Butler's counsel which is to be sent to his Majesty ...

[1617]

Copy of the humble petition of Richard Lord Dingwall and the Lady Elizabeth his wife to the Lord Deputie with the order upon it. [re Thomas Butler and lands at Cloughgrenan, Co. Carlow]

April 1617

Copy humble petition of Richard Lord Dingwall and Elizabeth his wife to the Archbishop of Canterbury [re Capt. Thomas Butler and lands at Cloughgrenan, Co. Carlow.]

24	Copy of King James awards to Richard Preston, Lord Dingwall and Walter, Earl of Ormond, 10p.	
	October 16	518
25	A brief abstract of all those lands whereof Richard Lord Dingwall and the Lady Elizabeth his wife are to have the present possession and this half year's rent past ending at Easter 1619. 8 page	es. 519
26	A book of all the leases, rent, reservations and the names of those that doth [atturn] to the Lord Dingwall. 8p.	
27	A note of such lands as were awarded by the King to the Countess of Desmond.	•
	[16	19]
28	The second petition of the Earl of Ormond. With the opinion of the E of Desmond's counsel touching the award.	Earl
	[16	19]
29	A copy of the opinion of my Lord of Ormond's counsel touching the King's award.	
	King's award.	19]
30	Copy letter from Walter Earl of Ormond to King James asking him to reconsider his awards to Lord Dingwall, with a list of specific lands t formed part of the award.	
	[16	19]
31 31	Copy ratification 'granted by your Majesty for yourself and a lawful administration to the Prince [Charles], as also by the prince himself of pension of the formailles [prepaid rent] of the Lordship of Dingwall granted to the Earl of Desmond with a discharge for his intromission with the said formailles	of a
	[1619-	25]
32	The copy of the King's letter to the Lord Deputy and Council of Irela to establish the Earl of Desmond in all the land according to his Majesty's award.	and
	26 Feb 1618 [19]
33	The Lord Deputy St. John his warrant to the Sheriff of Tipperary to p the Earl of Desmond and his Lady in actual possession.	out
	April 16	519
34	Copy assignment by Richard Lord Dingwall and Elizabeth his wife of the bond for £100,000 from Walter Earl of Ormond to the King, sign	

in the presence of Richard	Hadsor, John	Brumstone,	Walter	Archer.	Ri:
Fitewilliams. 8p.					

6 July 1619

Order by the Lord Deputy and Council that Thomas Lord Thurles should appear and show proof of his title to lands in Kilkenny etc., 3 sheets together.

October 1619

Letter from Walter, Earl of Ormond to Mr [Roth??] in Dublin re Lady Desmond's intention to go to Dublin etc, the validity of King James' award and his hopes of avoiding it, general business.

16 November 1619

The copy of a case, the Earl of Ormond v. Earl of Desmond and his wife.

30 January 1619

A rental of the Earl and Countess of Desmonds [estate] one year beginning 1 May 1621, [lands in Cork?, Tipperary, Kilkenny, Carlow]. Certified by David Brehon, 7p.

1621/54

Rental, 2p.

1621-22

Account of the tithe moneys 1621. Certified the writing of Lewis Bryan and 'the rents therein ... paid to him' by David Brehon.

1655

Submission of Tibbott Bourke of his rights in Grenane to Earl and countess of Desmond.

7 May 1622

With seal.

Lewes Bryan his charge of the ... Earl and Countess of Desmond's [rents] for Michaelmas gale.

1623

43 Rental of Earl of Desmond's estates in Kilkenny, Tipperary, Cork and Limerick, 4 p.

[1623]

44 Rental of Kilkenny and Tipperary estates of the Earl and Countess of Desmond.

[1623-24]

To the Kings most excellent Majesty, the humble petition of Walter Earl of Ormond and Ossory re his bond for £100,000, the Earl of Desmond, his lands etc..

Г1	623	-25]
ΙI	023	-23 I

Incompl	lete
	ICIC

46	Account of money received from the Earl of Desmond by the Earl of
	Middlesex and Richard Croshawe

1623

Account of the Earl of Desmond's payments to the Earl of Middlesex.

Copy of the King's letter to the Chief Justices in Ireland re his judgement in the dispute between the Earl of Desmond and the Earl of Middlesex and Richard Croshawe.

[1623]

49 Arthur Chichester, Lord Deputy to Earl of Ormond re Captain Thomas Butler.

18 February [1623?]

A copy order in Chancery in the case of Richard Earl of Desmond and Elizabeth his wife pet., Sir Piers Butler, Walter Lawless and James Bryan deft., for the defendants, at present in the Marshalsea of the Four Courts, to be fined if they continue to refuse to make feoffments as ordered.

20 November 1623 Copy 7 May 1653

Copy order in Chancery in the case of Richard Earl of Desmond and Elizabeth his wife pet., Sir John Everard, Sir Piers Butler, James FitzJohn Bryan, and Walter Lawless defts. For the examination of the defts.

20 April 1624

Copy 3 May 1655

Earl of Ormond's letter to the Lady Dingwall, Elizabeth Preston, signifying his willingness to perform the award.

[1625]

Damaged seal

Copy of a letter to the Earl of Ormond from a Kilkenny tenant re disputed lease following the award to the Earl and Countess of Desmond.

4 July 1625

Note: Sir Charles Wilmott's patent 1617

[166]

Note about Duchess of Ormond's charter, the gift of the Lordship of Dingwall to Sir Richard Preston by James I, 1609

[166]

- 'A more brief account of your Graces' [the Duke of Ormonds] estate as it is limited by the Deed of settlement 4p.
- Answer to the queries concerning the Duchess of Ormond, her Grace [re title Dingwall].

[c. 1662 ?]

Information for the Duchess of Ormond [re Dingwall title]

[c.1662 ?]

Note re Dingwall lands

[c. 1662 ?]

V Ormond Papers – Earl of Ossory

Ms. 11,047 Documents and papers relating to the financial affairs of the Earl of (1-91) Ossory c. 1660-80 with papers relating to the administration of his estate after his death. Also a few items re Irishtown and other lands in Kilkenny c. 1700-13

1660-1713

1 Instructions touching Scott's proceedings at Cowleshilbeg.

[c. 1600 ?]

Debts of the Earl of Ossory endorsed 'The first payment of the Earl of Ossory his debts upon bond due the 10th of March'.

[January 1662]

Duke of Ormond's bond to pay £840.00 upon the 1st May 1664. Witnesses [I] St. John, Will Legrand, Richard. Del[ues].

1663

An account how the £2000 is expended and what my Lord [Ossory] is indebted [expenses of a journey to London, living expenses etc..]

10 August 1666

Copy Earl of Ossory's rent roll in the several counties of Tipperary and Waterford for the year commencing the 29 September 1668 [Town of Carrick, Corporation of Clonmel, Barony of Iffay and Offay, County of Waterford, Clanwilliam] Signed Ja. Mandevill. Endorsed 'Copy the rent roll sent my Lord Deputy 3 March 1668 [69]' 10p.

March 1668 [69]

Account of payments made to the Earl of Ossory out of the Lordship of Arklow.

7	Account made for the Earl of Ossory with Mr. Page [payme Mandevill, John Connell, Mr. Archer]	ents by Ja.
		October 1668
8	Duke of Ormond to Captain George Mathew. To allow the Ossory £3000 a year out of the Irish estate, and other business.	
9	John Baxter's acquitances for the payments of the Earl of O allowance from the Duke of Ormond by contract with Capta Matthew, to Valentine Smith, Lucas Archer etc. 32 items	•
10	Rents assigned to the Earl of Ossory [out of lands in Co. Tip	operary].
		[c. 1670?]
11	Copy order for the payment of a yearly pension of £250 to to Ossory for his services with his Majesty's fleet in the Dutch	
		11 July 1674
12	Note of payments to Mr. Baxter.	0 June 1675
13	A note of what moneys the Earl of Ossory has received from the Duke of Ormond	
		August 1675
14	Receipt from John Baxter to Val Smyth for Jon. King's bon	d £100.
	4 Sep	tember 1675
15	John Baxter's acquitance of £500 from Lucas Archer, on in	structions
	from George Mathew. 3 M	ar 1675 [76]
16	Mr. Baxter's accounts for the year ending Easter 1676.	[April 1676]
17	Earl of Ossory to Captain George Mathew re Mr. Robt. Jeff	s of
	Lackagh his tender of £110.	August 1676
18	John King of Dublin to Robert Daniells merchant of London	n, bill of
	exchange for Earl of Ossory. 2 Sep	tember 1676

19	Mary Jeffes of Lackagh and George Mears to Valentine Smith re bill drawn on them by the Earl of Ossory.
	2-7 September 1676
20	Bill of exchange for the Earl of Ossory for £200.
	13 September 1676
21	Mr. Richard Purcell's account year ending at Easter 1676.
	24 October 1676
22	Bills of exchange, John Baxter, Ri. Mulys, Robert Lowe, George Mathew, 3 items.
	May, June 1677
23	Bond of Duke of Ormond and Earl of Ossory to Sir Stephen Fox for £1200.
	18 July 1677 2 seals.
24	Mr. Baxter's estimate of the account rents 1677 to Easter 1678.
	25 January 1677 [78]
25	John Keating's account of the Earl of Ossory's pension for the two
	quarters ending June. September 1678
26	John Baxter to Valentine Smith re moneys received with receipts.
	4 items. 8 November 1678
27	Ri. Mulyse, Whitehall, to Valentine Smith and George Mathew. Conveying Earl of Ossory's pleasure at the kindness of his uncle Mathew, referring to the state of affairs in London following the 'popish plot', and re financial affairs.
	With seal 23 November 1678
28	Earl of Ossory's summary accounts [by Ri. Mulys. 1670-78].
	[December 1678]
29	Brief of Lord Ossory's expense and income. [December 1678]
30	Earl of Ossory's authority to transmit his £3000 allowance to Richard Mulys his steward witnesses, William Flower, Nicholas Plunkett, Robert Leigh.

With seal 3 Copies/drafts.

31 Statement of money due to the Earl of Ossory.

1 February 16778 [79]

32 Bill of exchange upon Captain Mathew for the Earl of Ossory.

1 February 1678 [79]

Ri. Mulyse to Capt. George Mathew re bills of exchange, and re Sir James Butler, he should petition the council to get Dr. Fogarty's papers.

4 February 1678 [79]

With seal.

Geo. Mathew, Kilkenny to Ri. Mulys re Dr. Fogarty's will, Earl of Ossory's allowance etc.

8 February 1678 [79]

Earl of Ossory [to Geo. Mathew] 'for the bill drawn by his Grace!'.

11 February 1678 [79]

J. Ellis to George Mathew re sending greyhounds to the King of Spain, procuring coats for Ossory's regiments in Holland.

15 February 1679.

Earl of Ossory to [?] re Lady Francis Kitely, proposal to Lady Northumberland, Sir Henry Capel, sending his mules to Ireland, George Mathew to send Irish dogs to Spain.

18 February 1678 [79]

Ri. Mulyse to Captain George Mathew re Sir James Butler and Dr. Fogarty's will, Earl of Ossory's allowance and other income etc..

22 February 1678 [79]

John Baxter to George Mathew re Earl of Ossory's trumpets and his financial of affairs. With 'The whole charge of my Lord of Ossory's trumpets, coats, cloaks, hats, belts". With receipts from embroiderers, haberdashers etc., 9 items.

22 February 1678 [79]

40 Bills of exchange payable to the Earl of Ossory, 3 items.

25-28 February 1678 [79]

41 [George Mathew ?] to Duke of Ormond re Sir James Butler, Earl of Ossory's allowance, greyhounds to be sent to Spain. 4 March 1678 [79] 42 Bills of exchange payable to Earl of Ossory. 11 November 1678 [79] 43 Ri. Mulyse to George Mathew re bills of exchange for Earl of Ossory. With note re debate in Parliament concerning Irish affairs and address re General Fitzpatrick. 1 April 1679 44 John Baxter, Kilkenny to George Mathew, Thomastown re Mr. Robinson Surveyor, building work at Clonmel and money. 4 May 1679 With seal. 45 Copy Earl of Ossory's accounts 1670-78. 12 May 1679 46 Ri. Mulyse to George Mathew re Earl of Ossory's need for money, how his finances are to be managed. 17 May 1679 With seal. 47 Copy acquitances for Earl of Ossory's pay as Captain of the Horse. 19 May 1679 48 Totals of payments to Earl of Ossory. 19 May 1679 49 Bills of exchange payable to Earl of Ossory, including one payable to Bennett Richard, 6 items. May - June 1679 50 Account of monies due to Earl of Ossory. 9 June 1679 51 Letter re moneys due to Earl of Ossory.

12 June 1679

52	Ri. Mulyse to George Mathew re Earl of Ossory's finances.
	21 June 1679
53	Account of money received by Richard Mulys from Ireland for Earl of
	Ossory. 25 March-25 July 1679
54	Copy state of the receipts and payments by Valentine Smyth for the use of the Earl of Ossory to July 1679.
	[August 1679]
55	Bill of exchange payable to Mr. James Wale. 6 September 1679
56	Ri. Mulys to George Mathew re Earl of Ossory's accounts.
	9 September 1679
57	Accounts of money laid out for the transport of dogs to Spain by Owen Hearn and John Archer for the Earl of Ossory, 13 items.
	April-November 1679
58	Receipt for £10 half years allowance from Earl of Ossory to Rowland and Rachel Verbraken.
	9 November 1679
59	Ri. Mulys to George Mathew to remit £700 to Earl of Ossory.
	18 November 1679
60	Bill of exchange payable to Earl of Ossory.
	2 December 1679
61	Louis Salade receipt for quarterly allowance.
	20 January 1679 [80]
62	Ri. Mulys to Valentine Smyth, George Mathew re Earl of Ossory's finances.
	With seal 22 February 1679 [80]

Bills of exchange payable to Earl of Ossory.

March 1679 [80]

Ri. Mulyse to George Mathew, Peter Read re Earl of Ossory's finances. Includes references to papist plot in Ireland. 4 letters.

23 March 1679 [80] – 1 May 1680

Receipt for £10 half years allowance from Rachel Verbraken.

7 May 1680

State of the receipts and payments by Valentine Smyth for the use of the Earl of Ossory.

July 1679 to 8 May 1680

John Baxter, Kilkenny to George Mathew re his debts.

6 June 1680

Ri. Mulys to George Mathew re Earl of Ossory's accounts, expenses of sending dogs to king of Spain, the Earl's expedition to Tangiers and for his Company. With Geo Mathews reply.

13,31 July 1680

69 Bill of exchange payable to James Wall.

21 July 1680

Copy indenture between Lady Scrope, the Duke of Ormond and the late Earl of Ossory. Re Loughloghery, Balynoran, Hemingstowne etc..

[August 1680]

List of Earl of Ossory's debts 'demanded by Mr. Gno. Laure, Genl. of the Horse, to discharge the several tradesmen hereafter named!'.

August 1680

Louis Sallade's receipt for half year's allowance.

5 August 1680

The Earl of Ossory's pay as Captain of the foot, 2 items.

7 August 1680

74	George Mathew to Wm. Archer to pay Earl of Ossory's bill to Mr. John Roch.
	31 August 1680
75	A list of the Earl of Ossory's servants and of all wages due to them.
	29 September 1680
76	List of moneys due to the Countess of Ossory. 16 October 1680
77	Bill of exchange for the Countess Dowager of Ossory.
	16 October 1680
78	Sir Stephen Fox to Duke of Ormond re administration of the Countess of Ossory's estate following the death of the Earl of Ossory.
	1 January 1680 [81]
79	State of the Countess of Ossory's administration as drawn up by Sir
	Stephen Fox. 1 January 1680 [81]
80	State of the debts and credits of the Earl of Ossory.
	23 April 1681
81	State of the Earl of Ossory's debts and credits at the time of his decease and also an account of what hath been received and paid
	26 August 1681
82	Copy of Sir Stephen Fox's papers – Earl of Ossory's payments 1677-
	81. September 1681
83	Copy letters to Mr. Mulys re administration of the Countess of Ossory's
	estate. October-November 1681
84	Receipts Geo. Mathew to John Baxter of money for the use of the
(Countess of Ossory. June 1681, Jan 1682

the Court for adjudication of claims concerning her rights and title ... [1682 ?] 86 Duke of Ormond's account as steward of his Majesty's house, for wages, boardwages and regard to Michaelmas 1680, and for sale of places to 1 Jan. 1680 [81] [1682] 87 Duke of Ormond's interest account to 1 July 1682 88 Survey of Irishtown, Co. Kilkenny. [c. 17] 89 Copy receipts for deeds of Col. John Butler of Garryrickin, Co Kilkenny. June 1708

The state of the case of the ... Countess of Ormond now depending in

85

Ommissioners' opinion upon Col. Caulfield's case [re lease of lands at Clare etc]

1 March 1711

Abstract of Co. Caulfield's feefarm grant of the Manor of Coolroe etc. Toby Caulfield, Duke of Ormond, Hugh Henry.

1713

VI Ormond Papers - Corporation of Kilkenny

Ms. 11,048 Miscellaneous documents and papers re Corporation of Kilkenny, its possessions in Kilkenny city and county, disputes with Duke of Ormond, officers, finances, rentals, sessions of the peace, Confederacy of Kilkenny, Jacobite wars, Catholics and Protestants. Includes items re titles of Duke of Ormond's estates, and re Callan, Clonmel, Limerick and New Ross.

1592-1633, 1642-45, 1655-1749, 1788

1 Copy book of the ploughlands ... in the County of Kilkenny.

[3 April 1592]

2 Geoffrey Rothe [Mayor of Kilkenny?] to William [Pagged] bailiff. Orders for payment, 11 items

1595-97

3 List of persons who sent in presents [wine, brandy, poultry etc.].

4	Jurv	list?]
•	100-1	

[16 -]

A note of lands and titles as Walter Earl of Ormond hath in the Co. of Kilkenny.

[1614-32]

Orders for payment, receipts etc.. Signed by Mayor of Kilkenny, Walter Archer, William Shee, 7 items.

1621, 1632-33

7 Drafts of orders about electing of Parliament etc.

October 1628

8 Copy assessments made on the county ... Kilkenny by Robert Shee, Michell Cowley, Robert Wale, Richard Rothe. With warrants to collect to William Shee [lists villages and hamlets], 3 items.

1630-31

9 Certificate re deed £800 conveyed by Earl of Ormond to Countess of Desmond. Signed Walter, Earl of Ormond, John Shee, Mayor of Kilkenny, David Rothe, Edward Butler, Richard [Lauter?]

23 October 1630

Bonds of George Kealy, John Ross and Allexander Butler, James Archer £9 and £9-16-8. Witnesses: Arthur Creed, Geo Nicholson, 2 items.

July 1642

11 Copy receipts for monies levied on New Ross 'for the use of the army: the siege of Doncannon' etc. 3 items

1644-45

Richard Cantwell's agreement with the mayor of Kilkenny for the ironwork of the carriages. Witnesses: Ja. Cowley, James Archer.

13 March 1644[45]

Copy letter Aldermen of Kilkenny to the Supreme Council [confederation of Kilkenny] [re fortification Kilkenny].

17 March 1644 [45]

Letter Richard [Lawless], Clonmel, to Peter Shee, Mayor of Kilkenny reporting on what he has done at Clonmel.

18 March 1644 [45]

15 Copy letter the Council at Clonmel to Viscount Mountgarret Col. James Butler's troops not to be billeted on Kilkenny etc.

20 March 1644 [45]

Richard [Lawless], Clonmel, to James Cowley, Re his dealings with the Council, the billeting of troops etc. Refers to siege of Duncannon.

20 March 1644 [45]

17 Copy letter Richard Shee to the Supreme Council. Re billeting of troops etc..

2 April 1645

Richard Coote's deed to convey all his debenture lands to Major King. Witnesses, Robt. [Par ?], Anth. [Ounsby], Lewis Hay.

24 July 1655

With seal

19 Copy order by the Council for Administration of Justice in the county and precincts of Kilkenny etc. the Countess of Ormond to be granted a moiety of Coolesshelbeg, and Patrick Grene's survey of Coolesshelbeg.

16/26 July 1655

Conveyance by Archibald Allett, horseman in Col. Richard Coote's regiment of horse of his own and others' portions of land received in satisfaction of arrears, to Col. Richard Coote. Witnesses: [James Griffith], Edw. Cooper.

3 August 1655

With seal

Bond of Corporal John Miller and Mrs. Susanna Sly to John Bourden for £10. Witnesses: Tho. Brereton, John See.

30 March 1657 [58]

Bond of Capt. Thos. Sheppard to Cornet Jno. Godfrey for £4. Witnesses: Richard Anderson, Jane Smith.

[1659]

With seal

The apportionment of the old applotment as noted in the city books: 'The division of an assessment on the Co. of the City of Kilkenny is as under' [for St. Mary's, St. Kenny's, St. John's and St. Patrick's parishes].

[166]

24	Old and new tenants of the Corporation.	[166-]
25	John King's examination about being made a burgess – Co McDermott.	onnor
		[166-]
26	List of persons giving subscriptions towards the charter.	[166-]
27	Copy letter to Sir William Flower asking that sessions of theld as usual at Black Abbey rather than 'obscure' places Callan and Gowran.	-
	Cumun una Commun.	[166-]
28	Proposals [re Corporation of Kilkenny]	[166-]
29	Notes on the case re Mr. Connell's mandamus.	
		[166-]
30	Priests' names and places of abode in Kilkenny.	
		[166-]
31	The state of Ireland. Memoranda of proposals re land settle	ements.
		[c 166- ?]
32	Printed receipt signed by Earl of Orrery to Capt. Henry Ba Kilkenny, tenant of house formerly belonging to Michael Cramsburragh.	ker, High St.,
	With Seal	October 1661
33	Copy case [re rents etc. due to Corporation of Kilkenny] 1	3 p.
	23 No	ovember 1662
	Incomplete.	
34	List of the inhabitants of Kilkenny and their rents for half 1662[65] under the headings 'The old proprietors', 'The n 'The rent charged for the half year'.	
		[1663]
35	Peter Goodwin, Mayor of Kilkenny, to Josias Haydock, Re Corporations Revenues. Order to pay Peter Archer twenty	

• . 1			• .
with.	Archer'	S	receint
* * 1 (11	I II CIICI	0	receipt.

9 December 1665

) Becomour 100	,,
36	The Burgacy of Kilkenny, with details of holdings and rents[?]	
	166	56
37	Rental headed 'Half years rent payable to the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny at Ladyday', 1666	
	166	56
38	Rental: a schedule of half a years' revenue due to the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny at Michaelmas 1666. Endorsed 'Brief of the city' rent roll'.	
39	Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny to Josias Haydock. Draft letter of	56
	attorney. [166	6]
40	Miscellaneous orders for payment by the Mayor and Aldermen of Kilkenny, the Mayor's salary, swordbearer's salary, fire for the guards etc. 10 items.	}
	166	56
41	Richard Grace, Kilkenny to John Walsh, Dublin. Re notice for trial of 'Captain Yearly's proceedings'.	
	27 August 166	56
42	An account of the revenue belonging to the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny beginning with the arrears	
	166	57
43	City of Kilkenny: Copy valuation made by John Grace, Tobias [Creamer ?] and William Powell by virtue of a Commission of the Hig Court Chancery 9 March 1666, which they returned 15 June 1667. 12p	_
	166	57
44	Miscellaneous orders for payment by Mayor and Aldermen of Kilkenny, for salaries etc., petitions of joiners, glaziers etc., 6 items.	
	May 1667-6	59
45	Account of the inhabitants of Kilkenny within the city walls containing Sr. Mary's parish, St. Patrick's and St. John's within the gates. Under headings 'English or Protestants' 'Urish'	
	headings 'English or Protestants', 'Irish'. May 166	59

Copy demands of George Mathew for ... the Duke of Ormond from the Mayor Sheriffs and Burgesses of the City of Kilkenny. Includes list of

houses detained from and now demanded by the Duke of Ormond.

1 November 1669

Petition of Thomas Ledsham, Dean of St. Canice's for restoration of yearly payments out of the rectories of Offerclan etc. by Mrs. Hinshawe.

[167]

Draught of the conveyance between the Duke of Ormond and Corporation of Kilkenny.

[167]

Chief rents due to the vicars of the Common Hall of St. Canice Kilkenny from ... the Duke of Ormond.

28 October 1670

John Grace, Courtstown to Capt. William Burgess, Kilkenny re possible meeting with Mr. Haydock.

11 March 1670 [71]

Abstract of several tithes in the County of Tipperary formerly belonging to the Duke of Ormond whereof he is not possessed.

5 March 1671

James, Duke of Ormond. Pl. v. Robert Rose deft: Depositions of witnesses taken at ... Kilkenny ... on the part ... of the plaintiff before Edmund Butler Esq., and John Meagh gentleman. Witnesses: Walter Archer of Damastown, Valentine Smyth of Kilkenny, Edward Shee of Kilkenny, William Shee of [B]atonsgrove, Luke Archer of Kilkenny.

27 March 1672

Account of the hearth money of the County and City of Kilkenny for two years ending 25 March 1672 and also of the wine and strong water licences ... for one year ending 29 September 1672.

1672

Calendars of Sessions of the Peace, Kilkenny. 5 items.

1673-75

Lists of houses and lands held by the Corporation of Kilkenny and the Duke of Ormond in the City of Kilkenny, St. John's, Common lands, Frieren lands, St. Peter's lands under the headings 'Old tenants; New tenants; Denomination and term; rent'. pp 2-14.

[c 1673]

56 [Rent roll, Kilkenny city, 3p + 2 loose receipts]. [1673] 57 A rental of the Chief rent of St. Johns for one whole year due to the ... Duke of Ormond ... 4p. [1673?] 58 Costs of soldiers' and officers' uniforms with rough notes and accounts. 1 May 1673 Demands of the Duke of Ormond made to the Mayor and citizens of 59 Kilkenny by Lucius Archer. 17 May 1673 60 Copy concessions of the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny to the demands made for ... the Duke of Ormond. Signed Josias Haydock. Given to Lucius Archer. 17 May 1673 61 Mr. Archer's paper given to Mr. Mayor re tenure of Kilkenny from its foundation and chiefrent paid. 4 June 1673 62 Josias Haydock to [Duke of Ormond]. Draft letter re state of affairs in Kilkenny, the dangers posed by the Roman Catholics and their leaders, especially Lucius Archer, 2p. 19 July 1673 63 Citizens of Kilkenny. List under the headings 'For Michaelmas day. The Aldermen; The common Councilmen, the Clergy. August 1673 64 Copy Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny answer to Mr. Walsh. Re Duke of Ormond's rights of tenure etc. 2 copies. 10 August 1673 65 Lord Lieutenant and Council to the Mayor ... of Kilkenny and ... Commission ... for assessing part of the remain of the year's value charged on the said city...

13 October 1673

Lord Lieutenant and Council to Josias Haydock, Mayor of Kilkenny endorsing proclamation 29 November 1673 [for returns to be made of fees received by officials].

Badly damaged.

Tho. Longueville, Dublin to [Josias Haydocke?] re Mr. Pollard, the corporation and the Court of Claims.

[1674]

Account of proceedings in Parliament.

12 January 1673 [74]

69 City of Kilkenny: to Mr. Maj. and Ald. Goodwin calling the constables to their obeisance for Hightowne Ward [to enumerate inhabitants for the purpose of distinguishing 'idlers, vagabonds and sturdy beggars'].

28 [February?] 1673 [74]

Copy rentroll ... the revenue payable to the corporation of Kilkenny ... year ending 25 March 1673 [74].

[March 1673 [74]]

By the Lord Lieutenant and Council. Approbation of the election of Josias Haydock Mayor, and Thomas Young and George Wilkinson Sheriffs of Kilkenny.

6 July 1674

Lord Lieutenant and Council to the Mayor and Sheriffs of Kilkenny. Enclosing proclamations of Laughlin Mac Redmond, O'Hanlon and other rebels.

18 December 1674

Ri. [Ryves] to Josias Haydocke, Mayor of Kilkenny. Re legal queries and business. With copy address of the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny to Duke of Ormond re rents etc.

27 January 1674 [75]

With seal

Copy address of the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny to the Duke of Ormond.

1675

75 Mr. Echlin [attorney] his bills for services to the Corporation of Kilkenny and his receipt.

1675-76

Mr. Dormer's account for his fees, charges etc. for the collection of the titles of Ross on behalf of the Corporation of Kilkenny, Michaelmas 1675. With receipt 21 February 1675 [76]

1675-76

77	Thomas Young's receipt to Josias Haydocke for £12:0:0	
78	Duplicate of assessment for the Coroner's upon the parish [list of householders].	1 August 1675 of St. John's
		eptember 1675
79	City of Kilkenny. At the Court of Record held before Josias Haydocke, Mayor, William Connoll, Recorder. Order to Robert Garratt and William [K]east to levy fines on Thomas Young and George Wilkinson, sheriffs of Kilkenny.	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	eptember 1675
80	Lord Lieutenant and Council to Mayor and sheriffs of Kill Enclosing proclamation re commissioned officers who sen before 5 June 1649.	
	[20] D	ecember 1675
81	Notes about leases of [ejectment]. 2p. 6 January	aary 1675 [76]
82	State of the case about Blackacre forfeited by lessees and now held by	now held by
	the Corporation. 2 February	uary 1675 [76]
83	An account of some part of the Revenue belonging to the citizens of Kilkenny received by Josias Haydocke Mayor	•
		[April 1676?]
84	Rent account, 1673-76.	[April 1676]
85	Account of monies received by Alderman Josias Haydock	, late Mayor
	of Kilkenny [1673-1676]	[April 1676]
	Torn.	
86	Hugh Drysdale's receipt to Josias Haydocke.	
		13 May 1676
87	Redmond [Ledwith], Dublin to Valentine Smyth Jr., Kilke	enny.
		15 May 1676
88	'Concerning the ejectments in Kilkenny'. Notes.	15 May 1676

89	The Corporation of Kilkenny's case v. Duke of Ormond with rega	
	holdings in Kilkenny.	[June 1676?]
90	Brief of the certificate and patent for the Kilkenny trial [lisproperties in Kilkenny].	st of
	properties in Krikeninyj.	[June 1676?]
91	Lands and houses of right belonging to the Duke of Ornow [in the possession of] the Corporation of Kilkenny an tenants.	
	Chants.	[June 1676?]
92	Copy draft 'The several answers of James Duke of Ormond to of complaint of the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny'.	
	of complaint of the Mayor and entitions of Mintelling.	2 June 1676
93	Council's opinion in the dispute between the Duke of Orm Corporation of Kilkenny re forfeited lands in the city of K	
		3 June 1676
94	Duke of Ormond v. Kilkenny Corporation. Petition to the Lord Chancellor etc. to subpoena the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny to	
	show their title to premises in Kilkenny.	6 June 1676
95	La. Johnson to Josias Haydocke. Replying to Haydocke's letter, promises to watch the Bishop of Ossory etc.	
	promises to water the bishop of Ossory etc.	10 June 1676
96	Lord Lieutenant and Council to the Mayor and Sheriffs of Enclosing proclamations re claims of the transplanted pers Connaught and Clare, and reducemen of Quit Rent of barr lands.	sons in
	iunus.	30 June 1676
97	An account of monies disbursed by Josias Haydock, Mayo Kilkenny about the affairs of the Corporation, 4 Dec 1673 1676.	
		August 1676]
98	An account of revenue in the county of Kilkenny belon farmers at Corkhouse received since 1 March 1675. Signed [Burges]	
	[Burges].	16 Oct 1676

[Fred. Rowlidge] to George Mathews [re drawing up of terms of deed of agreement between Ormond and the Corporation of Kilkenny].

100	Directions about the deeds of agreement for the Corporation of Kilkenny.	
	30 December 1676	
101	Henry Ecklin to Josias Haydock. Asks for Haydock's help in obtaining his salary from the Corporation of Kilkenny.	
	19 March 1677	
102	Bartholomew Connor to the Duchess of Ormond re his dispute with Alderman Rowledge concerning the office of Mayor, Rowledge's irregular behaviour, asks the Duchess to postpone the election.	
	26 July 1678	
103	Mayor of Kilkenny to [Duke of Ormond?] refutes the allegations of Mr. Connor, rival candidate against him.	
	[July 1678]	
104	Improvements in the City of Kilkenny [list of Protestant inhabitants?]	
	September 1678 Badly damaged.	
105	List of leases made for one year ending Easter 1679 by the Corporation of Kilkenny. George Mathews authorisation to Lucas Archer, 9p.	
	17 February 1678[79]	
106	Account between Alderman Peter Goodwin and the Mayor and citizens of Kilkenny re the Rectory of Jerpoint, 1 May 1667 to 1 May 1679	
	1 May 1679	
107	Calculation re interest and principal paid out of the rectory of Jerpoint.	
	[1 May 1679?]	
108	Deposition of Walter Hackett concerning the possessors of titles in Tipperary, Limerick, Connaught, Clare, Kerry, Kilkenny, Wexford,	
	Carlow. 2 June 1679	
109	The Lord Lucas his speech. [re burdens imposed on the Irish].	
	[168-]	
110	Copy letter [Farl of Ossory to Duke of Ormond?]	

[c. 1	168-]

111	[] to Josias Haydocke re election of Mayor of Kilkenny	7.
		[c. 168-]
112	Paul Grimball to Josias Haydocke re disputed election of Limerick, asking him to ascertain whether a document on of the candidates Mr. Bartlett has been received by the Lotthen at Kilkenny. 20 With seal	behalf of one
113	An Act for retrenchment of salaries in order to recover of	the rights of
	the Corporation.	15 April 1681
114	Captain. John Baxter to Josias Haydock, reporting on his	activities on
	behalf of the Corporation's case [in Dublin].	11 June 1681
115	Copy agreement between the Corporation of Callan and the of land about Callan for the dividing of the Commons, 16	
		6 April 1682
116	Answers of Edward Stubber, John Lewes etc. to bill of collands of Corporation of Callan], 8p.	mplaint [re [c. 1682]
	Incomplete	
117	Alderman Lloyd's proceedings in collecting revenues due Corporation of Kilkenny.	
		1683
118	Copy Josias Haydocke to Barth. Connor, Mayor of Kilker Smith's debts, who he should trust now he is Mayor.	nny, re. Mr.
		19 May 1683
119	[Attorneys] disbursement on the Corporation's account 16	582-83
		[August 1683]
120	John [Pope?] to Josias Haydock. [Re Commission of Grad	ce?], 2p.
		1684
121	Remarks about the city [of Kilkenny] lands.	

122	Copy letter to Mayor [of Kilkenny] re local political matters and the
	claims of Irishtown. 16 November 1687
123	John Roth at Dublin to Josias Haydock, Mayor of Kilkenny asking for a list of lands and estates belonging to the Corporation of Kilkenny.
	17 November 1687
124	Mr. William Collis his account with the Corporation of Kilkenny about
	Lisnafoinshin unto 1 May 1688. May 1688
125	Notes on the formation of garrisons, troop movements etc. in the West and North-west of Ireland, Sligo, Manorhamilton, Enniskillen etc. 4p.
	January-March 1688[89]
126	A list of Protestants that have lately moved out of St. Mary's parish in the city of Kilkenny chiefly on account of the severity of the soldiers in quartering and subsisting them. With a list of quarters 'now reduced so far they cannot quarter a soldier'. Sent to Charles Gosling, Dublin
	[169]
127	List of inhabitants of the City of Kilkenny and their occupations. Nos. 166-[314]. Arranged by parish.
	Damaged.
128	List of names with note of parish, no. 436-543
	[169-]
129	Oath of allegiance to King William and Queen Mary followed by a list
	of 275 names, and a note of their parishes. [169-]
130	List of names in alphabetical order F-R with sums of money [rent, tax?]
	against each. [169-]
131	Some considerations of present use for the future good of the Mayor
	and citizens of Kilkenny. [Re Mayor]. [169-]
132	Mary Doggett, wife of John Doggett of the city of Kilkenny, painter,

her complaint of ill treatmen	nt by sold	iers quartered	upon her.
-------------------------------	------------	----------------	-----------

[169-]
An account for what the honourable Co. Wolseley's troopers [are] indebted to Thomas McNab.
[169-]
Peter Clinton and others receipt for quartering a soldier of Major Rose's company.
August [169-]
Copy letter, written at Chester, giving news of the state of affairs in Dublin as reported by a vessel come from there.
12 February 1689 [90]
Bond of Nicholas Fitzharris and Edmund Bron of New Ross for £4-16-8. Witnesses: [Arthur – son], James Bolger, Mortagh [Noraine].
21 August 1691
Account of subsistence money due to Josias Haydocke's foot company [for the] thirteen weeks from 1 June 1691.
28 August 1691
Lists of names in groups of eleven [soldiers?].
June – August 1691
City of Kilkenny: North Quarter: Rent roll. 2p.
[1692?]
Bills of Cornelius Carroll, Margaret Joyce, Nicholas Murphey, Jasper Shee for diet and money given to the soldiers of the late Co. Douglas
regiment. 1692
41 List of Cor. Wilkinson's books in folio. 4p. 1 July 1692
·
Copy notice of result of the parliamentary election in Kilkenny, sent to Charles Gosling, Kilkenny, with accompanying comment.
[October] 1692
Edward Worth, Cork to Charles Gosling, Kilkenny Castle. Re writs to be issued for the calling of parliament, solicits his vote.

144	Tenants in the City of Kilkenny and possessors of houses. Undheadings 'lessees' 'Possessors'.	der
	neadings lessees 1 ossessors.	[17-]
145	Alphabetical list of names B-Y with note of [rent? tax?] for ea	ich.
		[17-]
146	Names of Rogues about Kil[inoly?] and [] of the County of K	ilkenny.
		[17-]
147	List of persons and their occupations, Archerstown, Clonmorr	ick etc.
	Badly damaged and incomplete.	[17-]
148	List [of militia?]	
110	Zist [of minde.]	[17-]
149	List of cases to be heard before the [Justice of the Peace?]	
		[17-]
150	List of persons, nos. 1-306 [Rent roll]	
		[17-]
151	List of Dr. She's books.	[17-]
152	Butler v. Haydock. Copy bill of complaint [by Theobald Butle Lord Justice and Lord High Chancellor.	
	Lord Justice and Lord High Chancellor.	[17-]
153	To Mr. Mayor the humble petition of Thomas Fort, Clorpersons passing through his house to fetch water.]	thier. [Re
154	Charles Agar of Gowran, gent. Proposal for Haggard St.	
		[1702?]
155	A list of the Protestants [of St. Mary's parish]. 5p.	
		1702
156	Calendar of the Sessions of the Peace, Kilkenny. 2p	

157	List of militia. With return of protestants by the Sheriffs 20p.	of Kilkenny,
		August 1702
158	Commissioners of Array warrant to constables of St. Pat John's parishes Outgate for a muster of armed men, and of Catholics and Protestants in their wards. Signed by Jo	to make a list
		1 August 1702
159	Commissioners of Array warrant to Constables of the Pa John's Ingate to summon men to bear arms to serve the to make a list of the Protestants and Roman Catholics in Signed by Josias Haydocke, Mayor.	he Queen, and
		1 August 1702
160	Return of all the inhabitants of the Out parish of St. Patri David Tobine and Richard Lawles Constables. Under 'Protestants', 'Romans'.	•
161	A list of the widows sworn at January session 1706. 4p.	7 August 1702
		[January 1706]
162	Alphabetical list of Protestants [R-Y]	
		1707
163	List of Coll. Haydock's company.	
		1707
164	List of the freemen and burgesses of [?]	
		5 October 1713
165	A list of Protestants of St. Patrick Ingate.	
		1715
166	'Captains squadron'. List addressed to Josias Haydocke.	
		[1715?]

167	Lists of Captain Edward Evan's company
	2 items. 1715
168	List of Captain Stephen Haydock's [squadron].
	1715*
169	A list of the inhabitants of the North Ward of St. Mary's.
	22 October 1715
170	Mary Grace to Josias Haydocke, petition for relief.
	12 November 1715
171	The collection for Carlingford for St. Mary's Parish [list of
	contribution]. 18 June 1717
172	Eben Warren, Dublin to his 'brother' Josias Haydocke, Kilkenny about city business and the charge of Galway bill.
173	28 September 1717 List of citizens. Under headings '1 st Council', '2 nd Council', '3 rd Council'.
	1718
174	List of Col. Josias Haydock's Company of Grenadiers.
	18 April 1719
175	List of books and documents.
	[c. 1720]
176	Thos. Sandford to Josias Haydocke, soliciting his vote in the election of the Mayor of Kilkenny.
	9 June 1722
177	Depositions of Thomas Barnes and Stephen Haydocke re leases from the Duke of Ormond by William Hyland and John Blew.
	6 November 1722
178	Stephen Haydocke, Kilkenny, to his brother Josias Haydocke at Mr. Bagwell's in Clonmel. Re news from Kilkenny and his business in Clonmel.

10 November 1788

	2	L'August 1/24
179	Calendar of the Sessions of the Peace.	
		15 July 1725
180	Miscellaneous notes.	
		1726
181	Copy certificate Richard Butler elected Mayor, Edward Fi Charles Haydock elected sheriffs.	tzgerald and
		30 June 1735
182	List of the several tenants of Newpark within the Liberties of Kilkenny.	of the City
		21 July 1743
183	Examination of Peter Bluet of Bennetts-bridge, Co. Kilker before a Justice of the Peace. [Re thefts of money].	nny taken
		16 May 1749
184	Walter Butler Esq., his certificate that he is admitted a free city of Kilkenny.	eman of the

VII Ormond papers relating to lands in Kerry

Ms. 11,049, (1-45)	Documents and papers re Duke of Ormond's lands in Kerry and and Bantry, Co. Cork. Including papers re Sir William Petty's c. Trinity College lands, O'Connor Kerry, dispute with Lord of Co.	laims,
	re chiefries. 45 items	1657-83
1	Certificate lands in Kilgarvan parish, Glanarought Barony, Co. I set forth to Lord Broghill's troops in part-satisfaction of arrears.	
2	Copy. By the Commrs. For setting forth lands to the Army. Ord William Petty's lands. With list of lands, Kenmare parish, Tuosiparish. Mar. 16	
3	Copy record from Surveyor General's Office. Lands assigned to Hierome Sankey and his troops Tralee parish, Trughanacmy BarCo. Kerry.	
4	A particular of some lands in the Co. of Kerry according to the reducement of them to profitable lands [parish of Killaha, pt. Of parish, pt. Of Ballymacelligott parish]. With petition of Hierom Sankey, Richard De[lum].	Brosna
5	Copy Sankey's order of reducement.	1662-63
6	[Extracts from the rolls] signed by James Ware re grants of land Kerry, 39 Eliz. I – 16 Chas. 1., 7 items.	in Co. [1662]
7	A Certificate out of the Rolls. Lands in Kerry granted to Thoma FitzMorris, Lord Baron of Lixnaw. 1612	s [1662]
8	Constat of George Isham's patent tempore Elizabetha.	[1662]
9	Co. Kerry: Constat for Sir. Wm. Petty for Kenmare and Tousist	[1662]
10	The Commissioners of Kerry their order to the Receiver of the I Ormond's rents declaring the setting of lands for the year 1664. Ju	Ouke of one 1664
11	The State of the Duke of Ormond's interest in Co. Kerry, as to O'Connor. Aug. [1664?]
12	Quarter Master Compton, lot in Kerry. [list of lands, Nedeen etc.	:.]. [1665?]

13	Objections against Quarter Master Compton and Sir William about Nedeen etc.	Petty [1665?]
14	Order Lord Kingston's claim to lands in Kerry to be referred Commissioners under Acts of Settlement and Explanation.	to sub Mar. 1665
1.5		
15	Lists of College lands in Co. Kerry.	[1666?]
16	A Brief touching the lands in Kerry pretended by the College be the Duke of Ormond's interest.	, though it [1666?]
17	Propositions made in the behalf of the proprietors of those lar College detains in Kerry.	nds the [1666?]
18	The State of the case between the College and O'Connor, Ken	rry. [1666?]
19	Mr. Connor's note: the case of O'Connor and others stated as College of Dublin.	to the [1666?]
20	Interrogatories to be administered to the witnesses for pright title and interest of Duke of Ormond to the Mathe annexed schedule in the County of Kerry and Barony of and Bantry in the Co. of Cork, 2p.	nors in
21	The interest in Kerry [of the Duke of Ormond] from the attain Desmond stated.	nder of [1666]
22-23	Duke of Ormond's interest in the Co. of Kerry stated, 2 items	. 3p., 7p. [1666 ?]
24	A list of certain lands liable to the chiefries and other dutied heretofore due to the Earl of Desmond and McCartie More Kerry and Cork and now due to the Earl of Ossory. 'Proprinames', 'Denominations and Baronies', 'Quantity of ploughlands,'	e in ietors
25	An account of the proceedings of Mr. Crosbie and Mr. Chute setting Duke of Ormond's lands in Kerry.	for [1666]
26	A list of the lands contained in Sir William Petty's certificate Glanarought, Co. Kerry.	Barony of 1666
27	Remonstrance of Peter Connell [tenant of the Duke of Ormon Cloghane Knockineny Barony of Iveragh	nd] of 1666
28	A list of abatements of rents and of houses in Dingle not s	et. Nov. 1666

29	Draft affidavit of Teigue Mahony, receiver of Duke of Ormin Co. Kerry re Sir William Petty's claim.	ond's rents [1667]
30	Reasons offered in the behalf of Duke of Ormond Commissioners Acts of Settlement and Explanation, aga granting an [injunction] to Sir Wm. Petty for possessing set hereinafter mentioned 7p.	inst the
31	Copy order Commrs. Under Acts of settlement and Explanation Henry Pretty, plaintiff, Duke of Ormond, defdt. 31 Ma	ation, Col. r. 1666 [67]
32	Reasons offered against the granting of an [injunction] to S Petty for the possession of the lands in the annexed list con 28 Oct	
33	Observations concerning the claim in the County of Kerry.	Oct. 1667?]
34	Observations upon Sir William Petty's claim and certificate 2	e. 8 Oct. 1667
35	A constat under Mr. Jefferey's hand of the lands decreed to Cartaret and Sir Wm. Petty in Co. Kerry. [list of lands].	Sir George
36	A constat of the lands [in Kerry] decreed to Tho. Compton,	
37	Order for the Duke of Ormond to prove his chiefries in Ker 29 Oct. 1667.	ry on Tues. 29 Oct. 1667
38	Instructions for George Mathew Esq. in relation to the difference between [the Duke of Ormond] and the Lord of Coloony conchiefries due out of his Lordship's estate in the Co. of Kerry	oncerning the
39	Records against the pretended chiefries now levied in the B Clanmorris by the Duke of Ormond's receivers.	arony of [1668?]
40	Draft of a petition in behalf of [the Duke of Ormond] for requitrent of his lands in Kerry.	
		[1668]
41	Number of acres possessed by [Duke of Ormond] in Kerry quitrent taken 5 th Sept. 1668.	and the Sept. 1668
42	Copy of Sir George Carterett and Sir Wm. Petty's claim Kerry attested by Mr. H. Jeffreyes. [list of lands].	-

43	The Humble petition of Sir Wm. Petty and John Marshall to Richard
	Earl of Arran, Lord Deputy of Ireland.

1680

44 A State of the Kerry quitrents.

1683

The state of matters between the Commrs. And Sir Wm. Petty.

21 July 1683

VIII Ormond papers relating to lands in Co Carlow

Ms. 11.050

Jack Bagott, Mount Arran to Earl of Arran re timber in Sherwood park [co. Carlow]. Enclosing map [by [] Bird, Jo. Parker], estimate, survey and valuation of the timber.

13 June 1682

2 Constat for Francis Eustace's decree for lands in the Barony of Forth, Co. Carlow.

16 Jan 1666 [67]

IX Ormond papers relating to lands in Tipperary

Ms. 11,051 Documents and papers re Ormond lands mainly in Co. Tipperary, (1-24) c. 30 items. [166-] – 1753

- A note of the manors etc. [in Co's. Tipperary, Kilkenny, Waterford] upon [Walter] Lawless' grant. [16 -]
- 2 Copy James Early of Ormond petition for Ballycahill, Upper Ormond Barony, Co. Tipperary, with order for possession thereupon.

1636

Copy replication of James Earl of Ormond complt. To the answer of Sir Thomas Meredith deft. With Wentworth's order thereon.

1636

- Down Survey of [Knockgraffon] Par., Middlethird Barony, Co. Tipperary [text only]. [1657?]
- Patrick Darcy's opinion concerning the estate and title of Elizabeth, Countess of Ormond to Dromayne and other lands in the Barony of Lower Ormond, Co. Tipperary 5 Mar. 1657 [58]

6	Note of lands in Tipperary, the present possessors to shoote of lands belonging to the Duke of Ormond in Co. I	
7	Draft lease of Killowen, Upperthird Barony, Co. Water Duke of Ormond to Sir William F. Cower.	ford, by the [1662?]
8	Edmund [], Kilfeale to Edward Butler re curate of [Kel	ligmoiry?] 20 May 1662
9	Undertaking re tithes of [Tullamain], Co. Tipperary. Sig Prowde,	gned Nicholas 12 Sept. 1662
10	Bond of George Matthew of Reaghill to save the Duke claims on [Templeneiry], especially by Capt. Joseph JacTheobald Mathew, John Grace, Rice Phillipps. With Seal	
11	[Jo.] Fitzgerald, Knight of Kerry, Inismore to John Wal Teigue and John O'Mahony's attempts to distrain on hi	
12 13	A Rent roll of Easter rent 1667 due of the tenants he mentioned living within Clonmel, Carrick, Barony of Barony of Upperthird etc. 9p List of such lands [of Duke of Ormond's] demesne for Taylor is not yet satisfied. [lands in Tipperary and Kilke	of Iffa and Offa, 1667 which Mr.
14	Mrs. Godfrey Green's bond to stand to the arbitrement concerning the Manor of Derrygrath. Witnesses: Robert Smith, Ja. Morris. With Seal	
15	Award in the case of debt of Butler of Boytonrath. Sign John Butler.	ed [] Butler,
	With Seal	11 Oct. 1671
16	Valuation of the Tithes of [Kiltinan]. 1p.	1671-72
17	Copy Inquisition taken at Fethard, Co. Tipperary by Covaluing the spiritual livings in Co. Tipperary. Includes I belonging to the Duke of Ormond, lands belonging to vechurchmen, and a list of the jurors before whom the Inquisiten. 5p.	ist of lands arious
18	George Comerford to George Mathews about the curate	

19	Draft of an order to pay Mr. John Dassy and Mr. Nicholas Hoyle, curates of [Dangandargan] etc. 26 Mar. 1678	
20	Copy Civil Survey [Modreeny] Par., Lower Ormond Bar. Co. Tipperary.	
	Tipperary.	[168?]
21	Note from Down Survey of Balliastilla and Kilsallagh, Co.	Tipperary. 16 Sept. 1680
22	Mr. Marshall's memorandum about the school at Clonmel.	[c.1682?]
23	Value of tithes on the lands of Keating, Greene, Dalton and of Killeask [list of names].	d others part
		31 July 1753
24	Papers re title and purchase of Bally[carrane], 7 items	1743
	X Ormond papers relating to lands in Co Mayo	
Ms. 11,052	Survey of the property of the Duke of Ormond in the Baron Burrysowle and the Manor of Borishoule, Co. Mayo. [166?]	ny of
	XI Ormond Papers – Kilkenny Lands	
Ms. 11,053 (1-14)	few items re Co's. Tipperary, Carlow, Dublin and Queen's Co., and	
	papers re Sir Stephen Fox and Lady Ossory (1680).	16 1712
1/i	Directions how to set the lands in Iverk for 21 years.	[166-]
/ii	Draft survey of Ormond lands in Co. Kilkenny, especially Countess and Countess Dowager of Ormond.	lands of the [16-]
2A/i	Survey of Rathvilly and Tullow.	[163-]
/ii	Brief re Knockgraffon, Co. Tipperary.	[1635]
/iii	Brief of Henry Warren's concern in Co. Carlow.	[1640?]
/iv	List of concealed lands, Queen's Co.	[166-]

/v	Division of Templemore between Will Mathew, Thomas Butler Thomas Purcell.	and 1688
2B/i	Agreement re Theobald Butler's mortgage of Ballycahill. Signe [-?Hamilton?], Richard Butler, Gerald Fennell, Edw. Comerford	1.
	31 Ma	ır. 1649
/ii	Lands contained in [Countess of Ormond's] decree which were to her by the Commrs. For Adjudication of Claims.	decreed
	to not by the commission of radjuntourion of claims.	[165-]
2C/i	The case touching the [£] 800	[16-]
/ii	Co. Kilkenny: [list of lands with notes re leases] Endorsed Ld. [harding's.]
	narung si	[16-]
/iii	List of lands in Co. Kilkenny.	[16-]
/iv	The information of John [O Honam] re Templedavan, Bar. Clanwilliam.	
	Clanwiniani.	[16-]
/v	Brief of Thomas Shortall touching the mortgage of Jerpoint.	[16-]
/vi	List of witnesses for Killeen, Portlerath, Bellaghdoneen etc	[16-]
3/i	Abstracts out of rolls dated 1585 and 1560 re towns and lands in Kilkenny. 8p	n Co. [16-]
/ii	Inquisitions post mortems mainly in Kilkenny into properties of deceased. 8p.	607-21
4/i-ii	Copy orders of the Commrs for the affairs of Ireland and of Commrs. Of Revenue re Countess of Ormond's lands in Kilken 2 items.	
/iii	Order by the Commrs. For the Adjudication of Claims, Mr. Warmake copies from the Records for the Countess of Ormond.	
		ly 1654
/iv	Agreement re Capt. Burrell's claim. With schedule of lands clai him in Queen's Co. and the Liberties of Kilkenny.	med by
	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	et. 1655
/v	Copy of the council's order for letting the Countess of Ormond' to persons in trust for her. 17 Fe	s lands b. 1656

/V1	Articles of agreement between Countess of Ormond and John lease of Granagh. Witnesses: [], Edward Gamage, Jo. Bourde With seal 26 M	
/vii	Copy of the debet for 1658 3 J	une 1658
/viii	Notes of moneys laid out by Mr. Collins and Edward Gamage repairing the Castle of Granagh in 1658 and 1659	in 1659
5/i	Memorandum re Mayor Fox, John Butler and premises at Cro	hanage. May 1664
/ii	Estimate for repairing a house in St. John St., Kilkenny, to ma school of it. 31 N	lke a lov. 1666
/iii	Copy of the Commission and Instructions for valuing the hous Kilkenny, Colon, Inistioge etc. 3 J	ses of une 1667
/iv-v	Papers re Duke of Ormond's claim against Sir Walter Plunket	, 2 items. 1667
/vi	List of such lands as are to be inserted in the deed of trust for post of the Duke of Ormond's debts mostly in Tipperary. 10p. 8 A	payment pril 1668
6/i	Depositions taken to certain interrogatories exhibited to witne the part of Robert Rose deft., James, Duke of Ormond compl. 6 Ma	
/ii	Sir Nicholas Plunket and Mr. Shee their opinions concerning to distress taken of Duke of Ormond's lands for tithes.	the Nov. 1675
/iii	Certificate from the Auditor's Office re Inistioge Jan	. 1676/77
/iv	Mr. John Grace of Courtstown, Co. Kilkenny his bond. 11 Ap	pril, 1678
7/i	The particulars that Sir Stephen Fox desires for my Lady Osso	ory. 1680
/ii	State of the bond between the Duke of Ormond and Sir St. Fo.	x Jan. 1680
/iii-iv	Depositions taken on Duke of Ormond's part and William Bratouching the difference of meares and bounds twixt Ballingarr Ballydowan and Lisnagearagh, 2 items.	• •
/v	Order for surveying the land in a lease to be renewed.	

/vi	Case for Duke of Ormond as to Chancell of Kells.	19 Oct.	1686
/vii	The particulars belonging to the Priory or monastery of the Virgin Mary of Kells, Co. Kilkenny. 6p.	ne Blesse 25 Oct.	
8/i	Half a page from a rent roll, Nos. 53-85		169-
/ii	Lands claimed by Duke of Ormond in Nethercross Baron	y, Co. D	ublin. 169?
/iii	Pages from a rent roll for Kilkenny Co. Nos. 164-88, 196	-394	169-
/iv	Details of lands at New park Co. Kilkenny let to Mr. Ben Portlock.	jamin	1702
/v	Mr. Renoult the French minister's case.	19 July,	1712
9	Papers concerning a controversy between the Earl of Orn portreeve and burgesses of Gowran, including a writ agai Gowran, their answer with a modern transcription, variou letters, orders, 12 items.	nst the m	nen of
		16	508-11
10	Papers, mainly depositions of witnesses re ownership, bo Ballifrank, Ballicalan, Coolmaberlin etc. 7 items.	undaries	
			1670
11	Copy survey of the Barony of Knocktogher, under headir names, lands profitable, heath and furse, lands unprofitab	le, total'	
12	Papers concerning controversy re the extent of the lands lands of the tenants, and conflicting letters from surveyors, Edward. Wheaton, Ed. Kent, 21 items.	examinat v. Ballaro	cions d,
		1672, 16	081-82
13	Description of the town of Inistioge, Co. Kilkenny.		[16-]
	Very badly damaged.		
14/i	Trace from the Down Survey, Muninemuck, Bannrickin, barony Gasmoy, Co. Kilkenny.	parish E	irke,
	carony cannoy, co. minomy.		167-?
/ii	Extracts from Down Survey (text), Cappadroma, Kiltinar Tipperary, various lands in Co. Kilkenny.	e parish	Co.

XII Correspondence

XII. i General Correspondence

	tters of T.H. Price-Clarke to his daughter Anne, Countess of Ormond his son-in-law, Walter, 18 th Earl of Ormond, 84 items.
	C.1777-1027
	scellaneous correspondence re James, 2 nd Duke of Ormond, Walter, ^h Earl of Ormond and James, 19 th Earl of Ormond. 124 items. 171834
1/i G,[[] Thomas to George Mathew, Thomastown re Balliconnor. [17-]
exc	l. Smith, [England], to Charles Gosling, Kilkenny. Re bill of change and referring to death of Duke of Ormond's youngest aghter.
	[17-]
on be	andish Hartsong, Kilkenny to Duke of Ormond, congratulating him being made Lord Lieutenant, and seeking preferment, declining to made Sheriff of Limerick, and congratulating Ormond on his overy from illness, 3 letters.
	Nov. 1710. Mar. 1711
	py letter in French, Du Chastelles, Lomont, Dunkirk to M. Le urechas de Villars. Re plans for taking Dunkirk.
	15 July, 1712
	py letter H.N. for Duke of Ormond to Maj. Gen. Sabine and Brig. tton re recall of H.M. Horse and Dragoons.
	19 Feb 1713/14
	o. Armestead, Coventry to Duke of Ormond, denying Col. Ramsay's posed remarks against the Queen.
бир	9 May, 1713
ma re l Ga age Kn Bu	rrespondence re the affairs of Walter Butler, 18 th Earl of Ormond inly dealing with legal, financial and estate matters including items living of Lisronan, church of Dunmore, letters from agent John lwey, Carrick (2); prisage of wines at Cork (3-4); Wm. Skelton, ent, Kilkenny, rent collection Garryricken, Castlecomer, ocktopher. Records Commissioners (5); [Ml. Lannigan] to James tler re relief of the poor through roadworks, misunderstanding of rl of Lismore and Col. Bagwell (6), 94 items.
	1//3-1019

7 Correspondence re James Butler, 19th Earl of Ormond, mainly re financial and legal matters, some from his [agent?] Richard Eaton,

XII. ii Correspondence a	bout estate management	of lands ir	n Kilkenny and Tipperary
--------------------------	------------------------	-------------	--------------------------

Ms. 11,056 (1-5)	Miscellaneous papers mainly concerning the management of the Ormond estates in Kilkenny and Tipperary, c. 44 items. 1604-86
1/i	Concordat for freedom of Earl of Ormond's lands. By the Lord Deputy and Council. Feb. 1604[05]
/ii	Copy letter of the Lord Deputy, Arthur Chichester. Re Viscount Tully's and the Earl of Ormond's petition to the King. 21 Feb. 1606[07]
/iii	Letters re Edmund Butler and Inistiogue. May 1614
/iv	Copy Lord Chancellor's letter concerning the division of the late Earl's goods. July 1615
/v	Copy report made to His Majesty by the Lord Chief Justice and Justice Jones concerning the late Viscount Tully's debts. 27 May, 1623
/vi	Earl of Cork to Richard, Earl of Desmond. Re prize wines of Dungarvan. April 1625
/vii	John Shee, Mayor of Kilkenny to Earl of Ormond. Re business affairs. 14 April, 1631
/viii	Lewis Laonems, Bishop of Killaloe to Earl of Ormond. Re appointment of Curate and diocese of Kilmore. 2 Mar. 1632[33]
2/i	Earl of Ormond, Paris to Thom. Humes, St. Caen. Engaging himself for Stephen Smith's charge of 27 pistols. 5 Jan. 1652[53]
/ii	Patrick Grene, Currokeho, to Edward Butler. Re survey of Countess of Ormond's moiety of Cooleeshelbeg. 27 July, 1655
/iii	Th. Wheeler to Marchioness of Ormond, re disputed land in Inistioge. 22 Feb. 1657[58]
/iv	Sackvile Graves to Duke of Ormond, Lord Lieutenant, recommending his nephew Fell.
	With seal. 26 July 1662
/v	Edward Butler to John Walsh, Dublin Castle. Enclosing certificates. With seal. 28 Aug. 1664
/vi	Judgement on the differences between Mr. Thomas and the Duke of

	Ormond re Comminstown and Ballyconnor.	Dec 1668
/vii	Duke of Ormond to [George Mathew]. Copy letters re f	inancial matters. [c.1670]
/viii	R. Shee to Val. Smith, Kilkenny. Re business matters.	7 Apr. 1673
/ix	[E.] Butler, Kilrush to George Mathew, Thomastown. R	e Donaskeagh. 25 Apr. 1673
3/i	Jo. Bourden, Dunmore to Marchioness of Ormond. Re l Ormond's lands in Co's. Dublin, Meath and Carlow.	etting of 7 Oct. 1660
/ii-vii	Marquess of Ormond, bills of exchange, bonds, orders for tems. With seal.	For payment. 1661-62
/viii	Marquess of Ormond to Edward Butler. To visit his aun	ts and pay £30
	to each of them. With seal.	19 May, 1662
/ix	Marquess of Ormond's instructions re receipt of rents as disbursements.	nd 8 Dec. 1666
/x	Earl of Ossory, Lord Deputy of Ireland to Auditor. Orde	er re quitrents. 22 June, 1669
4/i	Sir Wm. Davis to Sir George Lane. Re Chancellor of Ti With seal.	pperary. [c.1660-75]
/ii	[George Mathew] to Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Kilkenny [Edm. But windows of Chancel at Knocktopher, with note of cost of Mathematical Seneschal for Mathematical Seneschal Seneschal for Mathematical Seneschal for	=
/iii	Hugh Dryslake, Kilkenny to Sir Christopher Wandesfor Castlecomer.	rde. Re tithes of 10 July, 1676
/iv	By the Lord Lieutenant General and General Governor or Order to Sir Richard Rooth to march from Cork to Cast Kinsale.	
/v	James Wheeler, Kells. Re his tenancy.) Feb. 1677[78]
/vi	Dominick Fitzpatrick's survey of houses in James and Tublin.	Thomas Streets, [c. 1680]
/vii	Mr. Recorder Turner, Dublin, to Capt. John Baxter, Mar Re representations to the Lord Lieutenant on a dispute to	•
	of Kilkenny and a Bishop.	4 Dec. 1680

5/i [Standish] Hartstong, to Richard Earl of Arran. Acknowledging favour. [1679]	5/i	
/ii Standish Hartstong, Dublin to Duke of Ormond, Lord Lieutenant, Kilkenny. Commenting on a letter from Capt. Wray about Mr. Odell's discourse.	Kilkenny. Commenting on a letter from Capt. Wray about	
28 Sept. 1680		
/iii Tho. [Huish] Kilkenny to Valentine Smith, Kilkenny. Re map and survey of Hen. Bell's park of Baliloghnan.		
30 Oct. 1680		
/iv Standish Hartstong, Bruffe to George Mathew, Thomastown. Re lease by Standish Grady of lands of Kilkeedy, Co. Limerick.	/iv	
14 Oct. 1680		
/v J. Temple, Dublin to George Mathew Clonmel. Re suit with Jo. Amptill	/v J. Temple, Dublin to George Mathew Clonm about Tulloley etc.	
29 Mar. 1681		
/vi Anstace Tobin to Madam Elizabeth Butler, Bealaraggett. Requesting her to intercede with her father re land dispute.	/vi	
4 Jan. 1681[82]		
/vii [Carter?] Anthony to Cornett John Butler. Re Ballidewan. 23 June, 1683	/vii	
/viii Hugh Drysdale, Kilkenny to George Mathew, London. Re death of Archbishop of Cashel.	Archbishop of Cashel.	
5 Aug. 1685		
/ix Standish Hartsong, Dublin to Duke of Ormond, London. Re bearer. 4 Nov. 1685	/ix	
/x Tho. Way, Killree to Valentine Smith, Kilkenny. Re payments and	/x	
salary due. 14 April 1686		

XII. iii Correspondence to Ormond family from members of the Royal family

Ms. 11,057 Letters and notes to John 2nd Marquess of Ormond from Queen Victoria, Queen Adelaide, Prince George of Cambridge, Duchess of Gloucester, 11 items.

c. 1843-48

Letters to James Edward 3rd Marquess of Ormond from Prince of Wales, 1884-1907, The King 1909, Duke of York 1893, German Emperor 1901, Duke of Connaught 1885-1902, Prince Henry of Prussia 1902, Princess Mary Adelaide, Duchess of Teck 1896, Grand Duke of Mecklenburg 1889, Prince Henry of Battenburg, Prince Henry of Prussia 1913.

XII. iv Correspondence to Ormond family concerning Corporation of Kilkenny

Ms. 11,058 Miscellaneous letters, accounts etc. relating to the Ormonds,

(1-3) Corporation of Kilkenny, politics, etc., 23 items.

1615 1635 1661-1722 1805-11

1/i Robert Napper? Middlemarsh Hall, to Archebald Napeir, Re papers drawn up by Thomas Earl of Ormond assuring the inheritance of part of his estate to his daughter, the Countess of Desmond.

22 Aug. 1615

- /ii Transcript of the account [re debt assigned to the Chief Judges] for Mr. Comerford, 1620-25.
- /iii Humble advertisements for Duke of Ormond concerning the debt due to the Earl of Mulgrave and assigned to Mrs. Fairfax.

Feb 1661/62

/iv Notes re rents, accounts?

1669

- /v Countess Dowager of Roscommon to Duke of Ormond. Desires his letters for the payment to her of moneys from the goods of Thomas Wallcott, attained in Co. Tipperary. 1670-3
- /vi Pensions to members ... paid to them by Sir Stephen Fox ...

168-?

/vii Standish Hartstonge to Richard Earl of Arran, Lord Deputy. Re visit to London and hearing before Lords of the Treasury re Ballaun?

7 Apr. 1683

/viii	Rough draft letter to Capt. Baxter and Mayor of K collection of rent in Kilkenny.	Cilkenny. Re 12 Nov. 1689
/ix	Commissioners to Duke of Ormond. Re prosecuti in the late rebellion.	on of those concerned 3 Oct. 1700
2/i	Edm. Butler to George Mathew. Re bounds of Jer	point. 17 Oct. 1676
/ii	[Grace?] to Mr. Secretary Gasconge: Recommend Ormond] Richard Carroll, attorney, for a position	O -
/iii	B. Jodrell to John Ward M.P. Re lease of Black C	astle [Co. Meath?] 6 Aug. 1717
/iv	Michael Dayly to Mr. Read. Re box of pistols etc	0
/v	James Shirley to Duke of Powis. Re payment of ta	exes?
/vi	Attorney's letter re sale of chief rent of Ticketstov	vn. 1811
3/i	Will. Colles, Dublin to Josias Haydock. Re his ac Kilkenny. Refers to search in office of the Survey Fassadinin etc., items of news.	•
	Tussudiffin etc., Items of news.	18 Dec. 1692
/ii	Val. Smyth, London, to Charles Gosling. Re journ Ormond and family to Ireland, and other business	<u> </u>
		10 Apr. 1697
/iii	H. [Sheridan], Dublin, to Josias Haydock, Kilken recommending Officers [of Corporation], Buildin on back.	•
	on vack.	25 Sept. 1714
/iv	Eben. Warren, Dublin to Josias Haydock. Re proc Parliament, a vote in favour of Maurice Cuffe, bil Duke of Ormond etc.	_
	Duke of Official etc.	15 Dec. 1715
/v-vii	Eben Warren, Ja. Clarke, Dublin to Josias Haydoo petition to House of Commons about illegal pract Kilkenny, refers to Corporation of Galway, city b	ices in the City of

/viii Jn. Fletcher, Dublin to Josias Haydock. Re Corporation's policy, marriages of Richd. Reade and Judge Coote.

29 June 1722

XIII Accounts and Bills 1796-1829

Accounts and bills mainly of the 18th and 19th Earls of Ormond, c.187 Ms. 11,059 (1-13)items. 1796-1829 James Butler, 19th Earl of Ormond in account with the Countess 1/i-iv Dowager of Ormond; rental from Lew. Cullen Esq., to James Butler of Kill etc., 4 items. 1796-1809 James Butler, 19th Earl of Ormond. Kilkenny bank accounts [Con 2 Loughnan & Co.], notes etc., c.30 items. c.1803-21 Richard Eaton in account with James Butler, 19th Earl of Ormond. 3 8 items. 1821-29 Walter, 18th Earl of Ormond; bills from goldsmiths, fruiterer, hatters, 4-10 drapers, sword cutler, etc. Including printed catalogue of Francois Jouille, Dublin, hairdresser and perfumer, c.83 items.

11-12 B. Corley's reports to the Dowager Countess of Ormond on Edward Cullen's agency of her estates in Castlecomer etc.

1 Nov. 1815 15 March 1819

1799-1809

James, 19th Earl of Ormond: miscellaneous receipts, etc., c.60 items.

XIV Papers relating to the Army in Ireland 1635-1681

Ms. 11,060 Documents and papers mainly concerning the army in Ireland, (1-26) provisions, stores, pensions etc., 27 items

1642-49 1658-68

1680-81

- 1 [List of jurors and their findings in different cases]. April 1635
- Notes re provisions needed for various military expeditions.

3	List of the divisions under their several commanders in the expedition for Ross. 1642
4	'A list of those that are to go with me' [?]: [expedition to Ross?] 1642
5	'The towns through which we marched in the expedition for Ross'. March 1642
6	An account of powder received out of his Majesty's store of ammunition at Dublin by Thomas Tallis Commissary General of the ammunition for the Army for this present expedition ended the 20 March 1643[44].
7	The Examination of Edward Roe, Ensign to Sir Thomas Meredith, Kt taken at Castle Martin concerning his breaking a tomb in the church a CastleMartin. 24 June 1643
8	Earl of Ormond to Col. Edmund Mathews, Governor of the Newry.
	Forwarding money, 2 letters. With seal. 24 July 1644
9	[Gr.] Fitzgerald, Tecroghan to Lord Digby, Chief Secretary. Protesting his loyalty. 18 Dec. 1646
10	Wm. Purefoy to Earl of Ormond. Conditions for the surrender of Bally[sammon?]. Endorsed the same day the army was defeated befor Dublin. 2 Aug. 1649
11	List of barrels of wheat, army provisions as distributed in Leinster and Munster. Sept. 1649
12	Col. Richard Grace, certificate that Theobald Butler is a Captain of the Company commanded by Arthur Moloy who was killed at the battle of
13	Dunkirk In French. 5 Dec. 1658 Humble petition of Sir Luke Fitzgerald, Kn. To the Lord Lieutenant o Ireland, Re theft of cattle from Portlester. [166?]
14	Charges for repairing the fort and guns of Duncannon. [1664]
15	Petition for a chaplain and victuals for Duncannon. With 'A calculation of victuals for the fort of Duncannon for three months for two hundred men'. Signed. Jo. Boys. 15 April 1664
16	An estimate of houses to be built Duncannon. By John Morton. 29 April 1664

17	An estimate of the charge for the present necessary r magazines and store-houses in the Kingdom, with making platforms and carriages for 310 guns.	
18	An estimate of the charge of repairing forts moun garrisons providing utensils of war for his I this Kingdom. Signed Rob. Byron.	
19	A list of all the officers and artificers belonging to the	ne Ordnance. [1666]
20	Arms in his Majesty's stores and the numbers to be r	repaired. 5 July 1666
21	Petition of Henry [Evens] of Jerpoint to Duke of Orr following the loss of his property by fire. With Duke answer.	
22	Captain Peter Fortecue to Duke of Ormond. Humble recompense for services of his frigate in 1649.	petition for 5 Aug. 1668
23	Pensions upon the Establishment for Ireland the payabeen stopped by order.	ment whereof hath [1680]
24	Certificate re Earl of Ossory's pay.	25 Mar. 1679[80]
25	Incomplete letter to Duke of Ormond. Re Ambrose V Richard Belings, and Sir Richard's books [re history	
26	Powder, match and ball remaining in the stores	25 Mar. 1680[81]
XV	Miscellaneous items concerning lands in K	Kilkenny
Ms. 11,061 (1-20)	Miscellaneous items relating to the Ormond's, lands in Kilkenny etc. Including letter in cypher c. 1650 and sheriff's accounts, Co. Cork, 1679-83, 28 items.	
1679-83, 28 items.	1077-03, 20 Items.	1640-80 17- 1800-50
1	A note of instructions touching Dromenire [Mr. Can	twell's claim to it]. [c.1640]
2	Peter Rothe, Kilkenny to his nephew. Re contributions of horse beds.	
		26 Apr. 1643

3 [Letter] in cypher. With 2 photostat copies. [c. 165-] Copy certificate under the Deputy Surveyor General's hand concerning 4 Crehanagh. [1657] 5 Miscellaneous receipts etc. including bill of exchange of Earl of Ossory, Lord John Butler's acquittance of his half year's allowance, rent receipts: Kilkenny, Crehanna. 7 items. 1659-80 6 Note re Corbally and its tenants, William York etc. [c.1660?] 7 Observations concerning the lands [limited] to [the Countess of Ormond], in Co's. Kilkenny, Tipperary, Carlow, Wicklow, Limerick. [c.1660] 8 Countess of Ormond. Counsel's opinion upon the mortgages etc. Signed J. Barry, Jo. Byrse. [c.1660] 9 A more brief account of the Duke of Ormond's estate as it is limited by the Deed of Settlement. [c.1662] 10 Co. Cork, Sheriff's accounts, 3 items. 1679, 1682-83 11 Instructions re petition to Commissioners re claim on Mr. [Exbergh's] estate. [c.168-]12 Evidence taken re Lismahon and Bowley, to which parishes they belong. [c.17-3]13 Form of conveyance of share in Kilkenny Library Society. [c.17-]14 Comments and criticism re operation of the Grand Juries, 9p. [c.17-]15 An abstract of the lands held by Mr. Walsh. [c.178-]Note re Cleveland coachman's wages. 16 1799 Draft advertisement for Kilmacshane Wood, Inistiogue. 17

		[c.18-]
18	Notes re the Bible.	[1850-7]
19	Rough drawing horses/cows, pond etc.	[185-?]
20	Scene from a play.	[c.1850]
	XVI Various petitions from the Ormond fa	nmily
Ms. 11,062 Petitions of the Earl of Desmond, Duke of Ormond, Mayor et Clonmel, Edward Butler, Josias Haydock, petitions re Jerpoir		•
items.	items.	1623-83 1804-05
1	Petition of Richard Earl of Desmond and Lady Eliza against Lord Charles Wilmot and Captain Thomas B possession of some of the Ormond lands. With answ	Butler, who are in
2	Petition of Richard Earl of Desmond to the Lord Dearrears of pay as Captain in the army. With answer.	
3	Petition of Richard Earl of Desmond to the king. Ag and Captain Thomas Butler's possession of Cloenwa	
4	Petition of Richard Earl of Desmond and the Lady E the Lord Deputy, Moryncorky and Crochane not par lands of Ely O'Carroll. With answer.	
5	Petition of James, Earl of Ormond to the Lord Deput King out of the liberties of Tipperary since they wer answer.	-
6	Petition of James Earl of Ormond to the Lord Justices of Ireland. Re depositions of witnesses in his case against Edward Butler. [c.1640]	
7	Copy petition to James Earl of Ormond to the Lord le commission to examine witnesses in case against Hoetc. re prize-wines of Dungarvan.	1 0
8	Copy petition of William Smith Esq. his Majesty's s for hearing. With answer.	ervant. To set date April 1640

	9	Copy petition of James Earl of Ormond to the Lord Deputy. Re commission to examine witnesses in case against Hore, Patrick Russell etc. re prize-wines of Dungarvan. [c. July 1640]
	10	Petition of James Earl of Ormond to the Lord Deputy. Asking for publication of the depositions of witnesses in his case against Hore, Patrick Russell etc. re prize-wines of Dungarvan. With answer.
11		July 1640 Copy petition Elizabeth, Countess of Ormond to [? Commissioners for Ireland]. In prevention of the disposal of her lands of inheritance as forfeitable. [c.1654]
12		Copy petition of the Mayor, Bailiff, Free Burgesses and Comonalty of Clonmel to Duke of Ormond, Ld. Lieut. For a charter following the Restoration. [1662]
13		Copy petition of Edward Butler to Duke of Ormond. For his salary as Treasurer of the Regalities and Liberties of Tipperary. [1667?]
14		Copy petition Josias Haydock to Richard Earl of Arran, Ld. Deputy. Dr. Hugh Drysdale and Richard Connell have maliciously and vengefully laid charges against him in the Archdeacon's court. [1667-]
15		Copy petition of Piers Tobin to Captain George Mathews. For his expenses in procuring witnesses to proclaim the Duke or Ormond's right to lands at New Jerpoint. [c.1673]
16		Petition of William Shee to Capt. George Mathew. Seeking the return of acres properly belonging to Balilowry from Piers Tobin who claims them as part of Jerpoint. [c.1673]
17		Petition of Piers Tobin to George Mathew. For abatement of rent for acres whose benefit he has not enjoyed. With orders thereupon. April-Oct. 1673
18		Copy petition of Michael Bryan to Capt. George Mathew. Complaining of the condition of Kells. With orders thereon and inspection of Kells by Edmund Butler, 2p. JanFeb. 1677[78]
19		Petition of Oliver St. George to the Duke of Ormond, Lord Lieutenant. Against proposed fair at Ballinecourt. With answer. 25 Jan. 1682[83]
20		Copy Humble Memorial of Michael Treacy, a private soldier in the Kilkenny Regt. of Militia now under sentence of death but reprieved by [Justice Down's] humanity.
		-9p4
21		Copy humble petition of Michael Treacy under sentence of death in the

June 1805

XVII Ormond papers concerning lands in Kilkenny

Ms. 11,063 (1-13)	Documents and papers mainly re Ormond estates in	Co. Kilkenny. 151665 1808-12
1	[Rental] Parchment. Very faded.	[c.15-]
2	Copy lists of lands with reversion to the Crown. Etc. Thomas Butler.	claimed by Sir [c.1608]
3	[List of estates of the Earl of Ormond]	162-?
4	Copy of the tithes returned to the Exchequer, Co. Tip etc. 8p.	pperary, Kilkenny Feb. 1621[22]
5	Accounts, rents, prisage etc. received from the Ormo	ond estates. [c.1622]
6	Copy chief rent due to the Marchioness of Ormond of and inhabitants of the town of Callon and the tithes to	_
7	Extent of Inistioge etc. [lands in Co. Kilkenny, Co. V Waterford]. Latin.	Vexford, Co. [c.1641]
8	A Schedule of such lands as are leased and set by Hi Commissioners to the several persons following	• •
9	Copy True note of the Lordship of Burrishoole's ren ending May 1662 as is hereafter severally set down townlands, tenants]. Signed Thomas Tobyn.	<u> </u>
10	Sir Arthur [G] Yore's setting of the Manor of Burrish beginning at Easter 1664. List of tenants.	hoole for one year 1664
11	Record of the Chiefrents of the Duke of Ormond due Kerry	out of Co. 1665
12	Edw. Cullen in account with Hon. James Butler; a re in arrears, Coolbane, Gurteen etc.; particulars of [Ed errors and returns, 8p.	
13	Castlecomer Rental, 39p.	1808

XVIII Papers concerning Ecclesiastical Tithes

Ms. 11,064 (1-38)	Documents and papers re ecclesiastical affairs and possessions, Duke of Ormond's tithes and other items re Ormond estate in Kilkenny and Tipperary, 42 items.		
		1604-34	
		1654-91	
		1722	
1	Copy King James I's letter confirming Jerpoint etc. t	to the Earl of	
	Ormond. 3p.	1604	
	•		
2	[Tithe account?]	1615	
3	Tithe moneys received by Mr. Thomas Comerford to of Ormond from the harvest 1617. 2 items.	the use of the Earl 1617	
4	[List of] the temporalities of divers abbeys, monaster by [Thomas 10 th Earl of Ormond], to Sir Nicholas W to the use of the [present] Earl. 2p.		
_		5	
5	A Book of the tithes as they were set for the harvest.	-	
		1625	
6	Survey of the [Earl of Ormond's] tithes, Co's. Tippe	rory Limarick	
U	Kilkenny, 6p.	1628	
	Klikeliny, op.	1020	
7	Mr. Wyttars account and receipt for moneys due to the	he free school of	
,	the Diocese of Ossory.	23 July 1634	
	the Blocese of Ossory.	25 July 105 1	
8	Notes re the mortgage of Jerpoint.	[c.1654]	
<u> </u>	Thouse to the moregage of the point	[0.100.]	
9 An Abstract of the Countess of Ormond's lands in Co. Tipperary the headings 'denominations; plantation acres; profitable; unprofi		o. Tipperary under	
	value in 1640; rent 1656'. 6p.	[1656]	
	•		
10	A list of presentations belonging to the Duke of Ormond in Co's.		
	Kilkenny, Tipperary, Wicklow, Carlow, Kildare, Meath, Dublin,		
	Limerick.	[c.1660]	
11	John Billington's agreement for Mrs. Heanye's hous	e 'nigh St. Mary's	
	churchyard'.	[c.1660]	
12	Copy list of the tithes belonging to the Duke of Orme	ond set in the Co.	
	of Kilkenny for Mr. Keane.	1661	
13	An annual rent roll of the undernamed persons living	7	
	and liberties of Gowran, as also the number of acres		
	name annexed, 2p.	568	

14	The State of the tithes of [S]allohodmore etc. as to Fitzgerald of the City of Limerick.	o arrears set to Gerrott 6 Dec. 1669
15	John Walkington, clerk to duke of Ormond, Ld. L Clonmel.	ieut. For the tithes of
		[c.1670]
16	A paper received from the Treasurer about concea Kilbecock and Killaghy. Signed Mathew Dowdall	-
		[c.1670]
17	Draft of a letter for passing the tithes to the Earl o	f Ossory. [c.1670]
18	A list of several tithes leased by King James to Ormond and after to Theobald Lord Viscount Tul Tipperary, Kilkenny, Waterford, Wexford.	
	inpportary, initiality, waterford, we more	[1670?]
19	Bishop of Killalow's statement re Kilmore tithes.	[c.1670]
20	Copy bill James Duke of Ormond v. Austin Marti Limerick. To, Michael, Lord Archbishop of Du of Ireland.	
21	John Bishop of Armagh. Deed re Richard Nash of With seal. Bad condition.	Limerick. 1671
22	The setting of The Duke of Ormond's tithes in Tipperary. 6p.	the County of 1671
23	Mr. Hartstongue's report on the curates' address i in dispute between Duke of Ormond and clergy].	n Tipperary [finding
		Dec 1675/Apr. 1676
24	Copy Order of apportionment of the Duke of Orm	ond's tithes. 4p. 23 Feb. 1675[76]
25	List of tithes in the possession of the Duke of Orn	nond. 1677
26	Jo. Keane to George Mathew the Younger, Nenag	h. Re Garret
	Fitzgerald of Ballyinard his tithes.	2 Aug. 1677
27	Bishop of Ossory's note of Duke of Ormond's tith	nes in his diocese. 30 Sept. 1679
28	Notes on case re tithes in Co's. Kilkenny and Tipp	perary. 3 items.

29	The setting of Duke of Ormond's tithes for the 1682[83], Co's. Kilkenny and Tipperary, 8p.	e year ending 25 Mar.	
	7 11 7/1	28 July 1681	
30	Certificate re Kilmenane, Kilcolman etc., their loc	cation and ownership. Jan. 1681[82]	
31	Order re arrears of crownrent due out of tithes of to be given to Valentine Smith.	Ballintemple, custody	
	to be given to varename simul.	22 May 1682	
32	Query and note of conveyance re Bishop's meado	ow at Roberts Hill. 25 Mar. 1682[83]	
33	Copy of the case about tithes left Mr. Read with t With Mr. Read's opinion.	he lease and patents.	
	•	May-June 1684	
George Mathew to John Kevan and Vincent Knatchbull. On the houses and gardens held by Ald. Connell from Waters Abbey Gate. With list of tenants and valuation.			
		Jan. 1684[85]	
35	Will Domville's opinion on the Right of the Heirs Ormond to tithes in Kilkenny, Tipperary etc. arisi Elizabeth and James I. 2 items.		
		16 Mar. 1684[85]	
36	Richard Hamerton of Clonmel his proposal for th With report on the condition of the land of the titl		
37	Minister's money due from Duke of Ormond, 2 it 1690-91	rems.	
38	Lease of the tithes of Kells, Co. Kilkenny from C etc. to Rev. Thomas Cooke.	harles, Earl of Arran 1722	
XIX Miscellaneous Papers			
Ms. 11,065	Affidavit of Piers Quinn, farmer in Killirney, Co.	Tipperary, accused of	
	forgery.	11 Feb. 1815	
Ms. 11,066	Order for William Falk of the Kilkenny Regimen incomplete rules for Kilkenny regiment. 2 items.	t to go to Kinsale;	
Ms. 11,067	Miscellaneous receipts.	c. 1802	
1,13. 11,00/	miscendicous receipts.		

(1-6)		1702-25 1776
1	Receipt of James Harrison, Collector to John Key Duke of Ormond.	van for tithes from
	Duke of official	1702
2	Mr. George Reade's account for the purchase of G	Clonmacshanboy. 1709
3	Receipt for coal for the Countess of Darby.	1717
4	Duchess [of Ormond], list of servants paid by her	1715-16. 1722
5	'A State of my father Sweet's estate and debts	'. 1725
6	Receipt for a hat.	1707
Ms. 11,068	List [of tenants? From rent rolls?] under headings 'Crowne rents'. With some notes re leases and arr	. .
Ms. 11,069	A True genealogy of the house of Ormond. Based Charles Lynegar, T.C.D.	on a genealogy by
		C. 1723
Ms. 11,070	Notice re school provided to teach industry, linen 1705	weaving in Kilkenny.
Ms. 11,071	Legal correspondence principally concerning the Infirmary v. Marquis of Ormond and others. [deb Kilcash]. C. 20 items.	
	•	c.1830-34
Ms. 11,072	Notebooks containing poems, extracts from Volta travels of discovery into the interior of Africa, mi	
Ms. 11,073	Inventories of furniture in Sutton Hall and Garryr belonging to the Marquess of Ormond.	icken, houses
		1800 1805-06